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MISSION STATEMEN

The Funds aims to provide an efficient investment medium whereby investors can participate
in portfolio that will seek o generate bgh level of current income, as well s the polential

for capital growth,
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KASBINGME

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

For the year ended Juneé 340, 2013

Tha Boerd of Diractors of BASE Furds Limitad (KFL), the Management Company of KASE Income Opportunity Fund (KI0F, the Fund), i= plessed to present
the Arniedl Report, together with the awdted firandal statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2013,

Financial Highlights

FY 2013 FY 2012
Met Income (R, in million) F0.508 57.516
Met Azsels as al June 30 (Rs. in million) bEb8.6E5 379,975
MAY per Unil as on June 30 (Rs)"" B0 449* GBY.ETEE
Return (%) 10.04 27.95

 Ex-NAN sfter final distnbution.
P value of each unit s Rs. 100,

Economic Envircnment

Fakistan's economical woes continued B trouble its economic managens who stragaled unsuccassfully b contain its fiscal deficit within the target and
axcasdad to B &% of GDP backesd by continued high aubsidas, decretionary devdopmentsl saxpanditures and incressing coat of domestic debd sarvicing,
Almeost =l macm fiscal tarpats such as tax revenue, subsidies wara missad and reached 1o naw highe. Current Aooount Deficit. howaver, wes raatively
tamed at amund 1% of GDP

Thee country Fee wet been urable b craft its way out of the quammireof electicity snd gas shortages which have booged sconomic arosth for some time
now. Enargy shorlages are increasing leading 1o lower production and coresquertly hampering exports and increasing imports, whils rising unemployment
ard rapld deterioration in the coerall queslitg of life s guang way b wide spread soclal unrest, s per some opinions the comtinued dectricky shortags hes
affected GOP growth by Ein FY 13

Dwring the year mammath IMF rapeymeant of ower kept presswring the Rupee agairst the Dolar forcing Central Bark totime and again irknade in the markst
b corkain the depeaciation, The central bank, a5 on Jure 30th 2012, was USD 100 8bn which came down by 45% 1o S0 8bo by June 30th 2093 Ths
decline logether wilh sume oplimism in U5 economy led Rupss (o depreciale by more Lhan 8% agaimst Lhe gresn back,

CH inflation was perhaps the most comforting fiore with 7.4% in FY12 as against 1% in FOLE This significant declire: belped contral bank to focus on
growith =nd comeaquently to dacraass the discount rate by 3% dfrom 12% in F¥12 o 3% in Fr13

Capital Marksts

Tha domestic aquity market anded the yasr with an attractive retum of 52%, aftar recording a modest gainof 10.4% in last yaar. The drastic chenge in
Fortures was calged by atracties stock valustions, fareign investor's entry into the market and optimistic espectations: from wpooming elected setup, The
avarage deily woluma aso remaired heatthy in Fr 13 with 201 m eharss a2 againat 130m sheres last yean. Foreign investors poured USD 56%m in the outgaing
year &6 compared o an autflow of USD 163m in the pravous yess

Irmvestment Stralegy

The primary objective of tha Fund iz bo provide an sfficsnt ivestment meadiom whanaby imessbors con participate ina portfolio thet wall sesk in gereeste
higghy level of current income, a6 well @5 the potential for capital growth The Fund irvests in fied income transactions in the capital market, Cver all assd
alocation of the Fund stood at 676 % for TRCE £ Suloaks; 184% for placaments; 4.1 % for government secunties and cash balarce percentage i 9%,
Fund Performance

For the year andad June 30 30713 the Furd eamead a retum of 19.04% == agairet the benchmark rebum of 9 90% and tha Net Assst Welua par unit of the
fund & the close of the perod stood at Bs, 20,442 The net income for the year ended June 20, 2013 is Bs 70508 million,




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE MAN/

For the yvedar ended June 340, 2013
Incerene O] stribat lon

The Board of Direchors of KASH Funds Linited appeoved the didend distribution of B, 10per il b the und
3 2A

#a tha Fund hes distnibutad ameng the unit holdars not |es= than ninsty par cent of il accounting income for tha p
by capital gesre whether realized or wraalized thersfore, its incomea will not bs subject to incoime tax undar dauss

\_ b encded Juna 30, 2013, 25 reduced
Sl Fait | of the Sacond Schadus 1o
the Incorme Tan Oedinancs, 2001,

hidnits with 3 value
=G50, 508 milli

i

Sade ared redemption of units

The fund size of KIOF wis Rs. 379979 million on Jure 30, 2012 Curing the year, units worth Be. 407, 723 million wers iss0s) 3
Ra. 30& 471 millicn ware radsamad. A= on June 30 2013 tha total numbsr of cutstanding units was 6,944 710 with a vaue ol Re

Code of Corporate Govemance

The Board of Diractors states that

Al The Firencial Statements prepared by e Managament Company, present fairly the state of afftais of the Fund and resuits of ks operaions, 2
Tl and mowameant in unit holder's fund

H] Propear bocks of acoourts of the Fund have been msintaned

cl fpproprista accounting policies hawa baen adopted for praparation of financial ststements of the Fund and accounting estimates ara basad on
rasgonable and prudent judgments,

di Approved accounting standards comprise of such Interrational Firencial Beporting Standards (IFRS) ksued by the Inbematicral Acoounting Sandards
Boerd =8 are rofifisd under the Companies Ordinanca, 15984, tha raguiremants of tha Tust Dead the Mon Barking Financa Companiss Eateblishmant
arvl Aegulation) Aules, 2003 dhe NBFC Fules) the Mon-Banking France Companies and Motified Entities Bagulsiore, 2002 gha NBFC Regulations
008) and directives issuad by tha Sscurities and Exchenge Commission of Pakistan (3ECF) have baen followsad in the preparation of the financia
shatements of the Furd, Whereser, the requirements of the Trigt Desd, the NBFC Bules the NBFC Regulations 2008 and the sad drectives difs
with tha reguiramanks of thesa standarda, tha reguiramarks of tha Trust Deed, the MEFC Repulstiona 2008 and the said dirsclives shall prevail.

£l Thee system of inbamal contrel s sound in desion and b been effectively implemented and monitorad,

fi Thera are mo significant doubts abowt the Furd's shility to continue a8 a paing concem.

il Thare fas been no materal departire from the best practices of corperate governance, a5 detailed in the ligting requlations

i Dutstanding stabutory paymants on acoount of boocees, dutica, lovies and charges, if oy, have been fully discloscd in the finonciol stotements;

il Kay cparating and financial data is anclosed

il Thee shabernent 2 to the value of investment of provident fund is rot spplicable i thecose of Fund a6 these expenses are bome by the Maragemeant
Compary.

ki The detailed pattern of unit belding, a5 required by the code of corporate governance is disclosed in note 291

Meleetirgs of the Direclors

m KASE ncome Dpportunity Fund Snnual Repwt fon the yEar

Statement showing atendance of the drectors inthe mastings of the Board of Dirachors for the year ended June 300 2072 §s disclosed nnote 283 af the
financial statamants.

Cruriveg e yees, v raschess veere i ool in L unils of e Furod By e Direclors, CED, Cornpeny Secrdary & CF0L aand Lhedr spovrses s eiror children,
of tha Maragemant Compeany othar than thoae diedosed innota 25 of thess finarcial statamants.

Pattern of Holding
fe on Juna 30, 50135 tha pattem of holdings {units) presant= a dvarsified imvestor besa. Detalad pattern s dedoead innote 251 of the financal statements.

Future Outlook

Going forasrd, faba of issusnca of 3G licaree, a much readed and swated Etisalat paymant, further rambursamant of Cosliion Support Fund. conditions
Betind IMF loan and further ad from other international development banks will likely decide the future course of market,
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KASBINGME

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

For the vear ended June 30 2013
Auditors:

Tha Bosrd of Ciractors on recommendation of Audit Committaa re-appointed M KPMG Teeeer Had & Co. Chartered Aocountants as Auditors of tha Fund
for the yaar andad June 30, 2014.

Acknowledgement

Tha Boerd of Diractors of the Management Company thankes tha Fund's valued investors. tha Sacurities and Exchenge Commiszion of Fekistan, Tha Sete
Bank of Pakistan, Central Depasitory Company of Pakistan Limited the Trustee) for their confidence, continued cooperation and support, The Directors dse
appraciae the sfforts put in by the mansgamant team.

Far and on behalf of the Board
Auguet 27, 2013 Amer Maghool
Karachi Chigf Execative




KASRINGRME

Met &sset as af fme 30
net asset walue per share or certificate as of fune 30

SalEng price for units s af June 30
Repurchasa price for units as of June 20
highest selling price

highest repurchase prica

lomest salling price

lemest repurchase price

Dictribrtiong:
interim

ist

Ind

Fiaal

fwerage apnual retum of the Collective Irvestment Soherme:
Fo thie period of ene year
Far the period of twva vears
For the period of three years
Sinpe Ingeplion (doce of bunch)

‘Weighted average portfolio duration { in fase af income and manep markef fundg)
tofal raturm of the Collactive Investmant Scheme, beeakdown into:

Capital growth
Income distributions

553,695,595
a0.44491

an.44a91
an.a4a1
a0.4491
2044491
G6. 7825
66,7825

MIL
MIL

19.045%
2L56%
-5.5aM

416%

109 days

ITe5%
-0 695
-30.E1%
-12.50%

-38.11%
45 74%
-44,79%
-317E%

41 days
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£
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HAORINGRME

ANNUAL FUND MANAGERS’ REPORT

1. Type & Calegory of Fund

Cpan-and Income

2 Inception Date
May 02, 2006

& Investment objective
The Investmant chicctive of the portfolo is to provide on cfficicnt ivestmant medum wherchy iricstors con porticipote ina pertfalic that will seck to
panerata high level of current incoma. 58 well &8 the potantia for capital growdh.

4. Accomplishment of ohjective
The fure is schiesing its objechive of gerersting regular income By imeesting in fied income instruments within the guidelines provided uder NBFC ndes

B Benchmark
& Mornth KIEOR

& Performance Return

KIOF Rertumn Benchmark refurn
Shee incaption 0.53% 12.459%
1¥aa 15.04% 0 90%
Lt & rcrithe F2.4%% 8.48%
Liet 3 rcrithe FAT0% 9.52%
For the menth 60474 0 385%

7. Strategies and policies employed during the period
Doty cootinised licuadity pressirs in the markets snd risk avesion by the paticipants, the corporate debt market remained Mghly depressed resulting in
tred== manly concanireted iowerds povt. becked TRCESukuks and top rated benbing irstrumenta. In the presenca of very faw buyers. the pcss of majonty
of TFCs decined sigrificantly duingthe ves, hovever, on pape, it remained stable doe tothe pricihg mechanism usad by mubual funck, The fund remained
fozueed inoffloeding TFCe ard to restructura non-performing corporata debt. Az a result most of instrumantzs held in the fund with cradit concame: havs
bz regtruchime:d during the yes

& Welghled Asset allooation | June 30, 204 3)

fizsat Allocation June Z, AN 3 June Z, AN 2
TFCS & Sukiks 20 0R2% 2, 435

Cash A IE L 445%
Placement with NBFCs 2.75% 2,40%,
Equitie= 12 005 Mi

Margin Trading Systam 8.7% Mi

T-Eills Mi K
DihersiFayable) 5.00% 16.77%

o, Significant changes in asset allocation durng the pericd

P compared to the st year the fund's overal exposure towards TRCs £ Subiuk investments declined to 2002% from 64.43% manly dues b o performance
of some camant sechor TFCe'Sukuks resulting in maor prepaymants. full prosision of dafaulted TFCaSukubs: and recovaniss from soma Mon paforming
TFCaSukuk, Further, during the year the Fund hes started te place funds under Margin Tradng System (MT5) b achieve good refurn for its unk helders
Further, soma equity scipts recaved by the fund [KICF) =8 & result of it merpar with ANME Plus Income Fund duning the Fund and one of the soript ageinst
restricturing of one of the debt irstrument, . Cash and near cash instruments alse improved o 51,449% against 943% laet year 25 the Fund g nel sdes
of PR 99388 million during the year andad June 30, 2013 == compare to net redamption of PKR 28456 million for the last yaar

10 Fund Performance

The Furdd marsged b give areurm of 12004% per ainum aganst benchmark rebum of 220% e annum manly doe b restructhring of some of tha Mo
Parforming sesets. The fooue on restructuring firelly paid off 2= the fund. through restrudtuning. reaceivad considarabls cash bo ease its iguidity woes. Going
forward in the longer term the retums kook to Benefit from pedformance of a few troubled debt irstruments which hase besn restrichured

The MM of the fund were PEE 272272 millicn (NAY per unit Bs 67,8793 on June 30, 2012 and A the and of the period the AUM of the furd stood A
PR E56. 725 million (MAY per unit: B= 80 1650,



ANNUAL FUND MANAGERS’

For Ihe year endad Jung 30 2013
11, Review of the market(s) irvested in during the period

: ile Fisacsal chaficit
it of 1.%% of GOR as aganst a surplua
evel of $13 billien during the year

Pakistan's econamic paformance proved te be a midure of sots during the peried urder revies, Q0P g
giood a 8.5% of GOP jncluding a one off subady amounting b 1.4% of GOP). The cumant acoount ran inkz a
of 0L11% last yesr, aven thowgh farsion remittances continued on thelr growth trajectary and ataned a

ent's inflation tarpet, Keeping in
teke amidst high fisca deficit
reeads, Bty conetrsl

Crvthe positive side, CF inflation was recorded A an average of 7.4% during Ehe vess, resmaining well within the
views thase trends in inflation. the caniral bark reduced the polioy rate by 300 basis points {0 boost tha prvata cr
vl resuting priniing of monsy, Howssen the prvate sechor oomtinues bo be crmnwced oot dus taths high government
intha markat, and risk avarsion by lenders amid high propameity of banies toland to the government.

12, Fumnd parformance by market(s) and by instnments
For details, please refer o the full yearly accounts

13. Distribution
The fured cistribate e following for the vesr ended Jume 30, 2012

Drate of Distribution Amount of Distribution (PKR) NAV (PKR) Ex-NAV af Fund (PER)
July Od, 2013 10 per unit 801650 T 1650

14, Significant changes in the state of affairs
Curing tha year, AMZ Plua Income Furd dalso mansgad by KASE Funds: Ltd | wes margad into BASE Incoma Cpportunity Fund with the waw o combins

the synermes of the tee identicd Funcds under management of e Management Company and o reduce sperational redundancies, theray bensfitting
imiestors of Both the Funds.,

15, Breakdown of unit holdings by sz
Breskdown of unit holdings by siza is same a8 in the director's report

16, Unit Splits
Thers were no unit splits duing the period

18, Sofl Commisshon
The management company raceived soft commission from the brokers in the form of research raports which wara sent in both soft and hard copies.

£
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£
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KASRINGRME

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS OF KASB INCOME OPPORTUNITY FUND

Feport of the Trustee pursuant to Aegudation 41(hy and Clawse 8 of Schedule ¥ of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Enfities
Regulations, 2008

Wie Central Depository Company of Pakictan Limited, being the Tiustes of K&SE Income Oppotuniy Fund the Fund are of the opinion that BASE Funds
Limited beirg the Managernent Company of the Fund hes in all malend respects managed the Fund during the year ended June 30 2073 in accordance
withtha provigors of the folowing

1l Limitations impesed on the investmant powers of the Menagemant Compary undar the constitutive documsants of the Fund;
il The pricing issuance and rademplion of units ars carmad out in accordsnca with the reguirameant= of the constitulive docoumants of the Fund; and

il Tha Non-Barking Finance Companies (Establishmant and Requistions) Rules, 2003, the Mon-Barking Finarce Companies and Motified Entities
Feadations, 2006 and the constitutive documents of the Fund

Wie weould like bo dreasay unil bodders” attention towerds the fact that the Fund bas recognized provision amounting to Bz 1372 million sganat CHA Golf
Club Piatirum Membership Cards refrospectivaly on June 30, 2013 witheat cbtaining prior approval of SECF as required under SECP directive, Further,
we are of tha viaw that Meragamant Company has mads socess provision ageinst these Cards which has bean communicated to the 3ECP and the
Managenment Compeany

Busharmmad Hanil Jakhira
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Comgrany of Pakistan Limited

Karachl, Oetober 25, 2013



KASRINGRME

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CO

N

For the year ended June 30, 2013

This statemerk i= being prasantad to comply with the Code of Comporsts Gowamnenca (the Code) containad )
of the Stodk Exchange for tha purpoea of ssteblishing & framework of good povamence, whereby & liste:

b=t precticss of Comporats Governance.
KASE Funds Limitad dha Maragamant Company|, an unlistad public company, managss tha sffzirs of KASE |83
The Furd b=ing a unit trust opan and scheme does not hawa its own Board of Diractors. Tha Meanagement Comp
i ke Coode b Ehe Fund, whose units are listed 26 a security on the Exchange, in e following mannes

1

T;&mde_rﬁﬂdm diractors meet the criterlacf independence under claige | (B of the Code

[ R

11.
12
13
14.

15
18,

17

21,

2
24,

Karachi

3P HATEGWEHNENEQ_

-

h=s applied the prnciples cortained

The Managemant Company encourages represantation of independent non-axecutive directo

Category Names
Indepandant Mon-Execulive fdr. Dadgar P Mufti
Indepandant Non-Execulive Mr. Roberd C. Richard Ouren

Chief Executive Officer e |

Hon-independent hr. r Manboal j
Hon-Executive Direciors :

ittt Mr, Muzaffar 48 Shah Bukhari - gl

directors hava confimmad that none of them ars saning as & dirachor in more then seven listed companiss. including this compa

the listesd subsidianies of listed holding companies where aplicable), i
Al the residont direchors of the Monagamant Compony ore registercd os tepayas ard rone of tham have defdted inpoymerk of ony loon e
banking company, & OFI or an MEFC or, being a mambar of a sock exchenga, have bean declared &= a defaultar by that stock exchange.
There vaas to casisal vacancy accurred i e Booard during the e,
Tha Management Company has prepared a "Coda of Conduct” and has ensured that approprists steps have bean fakan fo dissamirete it throughout

the company akong with it sipporting policies and procedires,
The Board has deseloped a veon f mesion stalement, an overall corporate strategy and significant policiss for the Fund & complee reoond of
Eartl-:ulas of significant policies slong with the dates on which these were approved or amended has bean maintained.

I the pewers of the Board have been duly exeiosed and decigons on matenial rarsactions, induding sppeiniment and detemiration of remuneration
and tarms and conditions of employmant of the CEC and other exacutive and non-axecutive diractors heve bean takan by the Board
Tha mastings of the Board we;dpraded over by tha Chairman and the Board mat at least orca in every guarter, Written rotices of the Board
meetings, aong with agenda and working papers, were circulaied J least seven days befora the meetings. The mimites of the meeting: were
sppropriataly recorded and cirodated LE - L
The eiment Company has conducted an orieptation course for its directors b :ﬁgns& them of their duties and respomsibiliies
Curirg the vear, there wes no change of the Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer (CFCA
El.ringﬂtﬁl‘;&laatl'ﬂ Board has cutsourcad the inbamal awdt function to firm of Chartered Accountants who are considered suitably qualifiad and
R fior thie puipese and ara oonersant with the policss and procedures of the Furd,
Tha Diradiors’ rapert ralating b tha Fund for the year ended June 300 2073 has bean preparad in compliance with the requirements of tha Coda
ard fully describes the salient matters required to be dsdosad
The financial statements of the Furd were duly sndorsed by the CED and CFO of the Management Company befera approval of the Board
Thea Cirectors, CEC, and axacutives do not hold any inbarest in the units of the Fund othar than those disdoss in pattem of unit holders of the Fund
Thee Fum b complied with al the applcable corporate and firancial r&[:a:rtlr-:r requirements of the Code
The Board has formed an Audt Committee & comprises of theee members, all of whom are non-executive dreactors of the Management Company
ircluding the Chairman of the Committes who is an indepandant diractor. Tha related party fransaction were placed bafora the Audt Committes
meeting hedd b approve annial accounks and wera approved by the Board with necessary juetification for non arm's length transaction {if any
and pricing methods for transaction that were mads to terme equivalent fo those that preval in the am's length traneaction only if such terma
canbe subdtantigtad ) ) )
The meetings of the Awdit Committes were held a2 lesst once insvery guarter and prior o the sppeoel of intenim and firal results of the Fund as
requirad by tha Code. Tha tarme of réference hava baan approved in the meeting of the Board and the Committae hee bean advised bo ansurs
compliance with those terms of referance, d ) |
Thee Beard has fomied a Human Pesource and Femuneralion committes, It cemprises of thies members including the Chairman of the Committes
who iz a non-aeotive dracon,. ) ) ) )
The board has et up an effective ntemal audt function which comprises of persennel who ae considered sutably qualified and experienced for
the pumpose and are corwersant with policies and procedures of the company,
Thea statutory suditors of the Fund have confirmed that they hava baan given a satisfactory raling undar the Cudity Confrol Reviaw program of tha
Iretitute of Chaitered Sooointants of Pakistan JCAPL that they o any of the partners of the firmy thair spouses and mirer childeen do ret hold units
of the Furd and that tha firn and all it pariners are in complianca with tha International Federation of Accountanks (IFAC) gquidslines on coda of
ethics 28 adoptad by tha ICAP _ _ _ _ N
Thee statubory suicktors oF the persons ssociabed with tem have nol been appointed b provide other services encept in acordance with the listing
raguiations and tha audtors hava confirmed that they have obsarvad IFAC guidalings in this ragerd. !
The ‘dossed period’, price B the anncuncement of interim J firal results, and bisiness decisions, which may materially affect the market price of
Fund's units, was detemined and intimated to drecions, employess and stock exchanpes)
Material / price sensitive information has besn disseminated among all merkst participants at once through stock exchangaiz).
We confinm Ehat Al other material principles enshrined in the the Code hae besn complied with

For and an behall of Board of Direstors

Amier Maghool

August 27, 2013 Chiaf Exacutiva Officar

BAAL present, the Board 'y
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HAORINGRME

REVIEW REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS ON THE STATEMENT OF
COMPLIANCE WITH THE BEST PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We haea reviewad the Ststemert of Complianca with the best praclicss contsinad in the Coda of Comporste Governanca {*Stabament of Compliance™

prepared by the Board of Directors of KASE Funds Lirnited, (the Management Companyiof the Fund be comply with the Listing Regulations of Karach
Stopds Exchange Limitad, whera the Furd & listed

The resporsibility for complisnca with the Code of Coporste Gowamanca is that of the Board of Diractors of the Mansgamant Company of the Fund. Cur
resporsibility 1 b revies tothe axtent where such compliance can be objectieely verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflacts the status of
the Furd's compliance with the provisions of tha Code of Coporste Govamanca and raport if it doss not. A raviaw ia limitad primarly to inguiries of tha
Management Company's parsennel and reviaw of wvanious documents prepared by the Management Company te comply with the Code

&z pait of cur sudie of the firancial statementa. wa are ragured be obtsin an understanding of the acoounting and intermal control syetems sufficent to
phan the aucit and devdop an effective audit appesach, We are not required b consider whether the Beard s statement on interral control covers all risks
and corkmla, or to form an opinicn on the effactivensss of such inbarmal controlz, the Managament Company' s corporats goverrenca proceduras and nskes.

Furthear, sub-regulation {x) of Listing Regulstions 35 notified by tha Karechi Stock Exchanga Limitad raquires the Management Company 1o placa bafora
the Board of Directors for ther consaderation and spprosal of relabed party ransacions detinguishing bebwaen transactions caried o an bems squivalent
to thoae that pravaiad in srm's length transactions and traresctiors which ars not axaoutad & am's lenghh prica recording proper justification for wing
sieh akermate pricing mechamsm, Fusther, Jl such transactions are dso required to be separstely placed befors the sudt committes, We ara anly regured
& hawa ersurad compliancsa of requirament to the axtent of spproval of rdatad party trareactions by the Board of Diradtora. We hawe not camied out any
procadires to determing whether the relabad party transactions wene uncer taken at am's length price oF nat

Bi=sed on our raviave nothing hes comea o our attention. which causses uE o baligva that the Statemant of Complisnca does not sppropristaly reflact tha
Fund's compliance, in Al matenal respects, with the best practicss sontaned inthe Code of Corporate Gowarnancs for the year enced 20 Jure 20132

Drates 27 August 2013
KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Charered Accourtars
Karachi



HAORINGRME

In making those risk sesesamants, the awdior corsidars interna controd relesant o the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of tha finarcisl state
in crder b desion sl procedures thal are appropiiate inthe circumstances, bt not for the pupose of @xpressin an opirion on the dfectivensss af fsw

ertity’s inkamal control. An sudie alec indudes avaluating the appropristensss of sccounting poloss used and tha rassoretdsness of aooounting estimatas

e by maragement, a5 well as evalieting thw overall presentation of the financa dabements
We bdives that the audt eddence we have obtained & sufficient and appropriste to provide abass for oo audt opinon,
Ohplbon

o opinien, the financial stabements ave a true and Taie wew of the state of the Fund's affairs o ot 30 June 2015 and of s financid perfomance, its
ceeh flows and traresctions for the yaar then andad in accordanca with spprovad accounting stendards =8 applicabls in Fakistan

Ermphasis of Matter

We cheas Altention bo the following matters

. a6 maore fully explanad in note 8o the accompanging financid staterments, Securties and Exclange Commssion of Pakistan (3ECF had directed
tha Furd wde ita letter SCOGAMOWHAARAT7 2013 datad 19 Fabmary 2071340 disposs off k3 imisstmant in CHA Guif Club Platimam Membership
Coreks Bl 19 May 2002 However, such investment hag nat vet been disposed. Furthsr, the Fund hes recogrized a provision of Bz, 1,972 migsion
thara ageinst bessd on negotiation with buyars and prior spproval of SECP for the same 58 required by tha said latar was: not obbsired. Management
P informied SECE about the prosision and sought ther audarce, A g conseauencs b such provigion the distribution made by the Furd esceads
tha profit for the year anded 30 June 2013 and

. a6 mare fully eaplaned in note 16 o the accompanging financs stabaments there B anuncertanty relating o the future outcore of the liigation
regarding corkribution to the Workers” Welfars Fund which is currently pending for adjudicstion at the Henorabla High Court of Sindh

Cur opirion ia not gualified inrespact of sbove matters
Report on (iher Legal and Regudatory Reguirements

In our opinicn, the financa statements hewa been prapared in accordance with the relevant provisions of tha Mot-Banlang Firenca Companies {Esteblisbment
and Regulation Rues, 2003 and hen-Barking Finarce Companies and Motified Entities: Reouations, 2008

Ctate: 27 Auguest 20013 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Acooumlants
Karachi Monesza Usman Buit
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KASB Income Opportunity Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As at June 30, 2013

Assets

Balances with banks - saving accounts
Lending under Margin Trading System
Income receivable

Investments

Certificate of Investment

DHA Golf Club Platinum Membership Cards
Placements

Term Finance Facility

Receivable against loan

Receivable against lease facility

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Total assets

Liabilities

Payable to Management Company of the Fund

Payable to Trustee of the Fund

Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Unit holders’ funds

Contingencies and commitments

Number of units in issue

Net assets value per unit

Note

~N o 01 b~

© oo

10
11
12
13

14
15
16
17

18

19

The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For KASB Funds Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive

2013

2012

(Rupees in '000)

291,177 36,338
38,096 -
34,260 18,239

181,213 263,204

- 13,448
5,601 -

- 53,837
7,942 -
5,751 225

564,040 385,291

1,149 731
76 59

335 294
5,757 4,228
7,317 5,312

556,723 379,979

556,723 379,979

(Number of units)

6,944,710

5,597,872

(Rupees)
80.1650

67.8793

Director




KASB Income Opportunity Fund

Income Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2013

Income

Income from term finance and sukuk certificates

Income from government securities

Income from certificates of investment

Income from term deposit receipts

Income from certificates of musharaka

Income from Margin Trading System

Profit on bank deposits

Capital gain / (loss) on sale of investments

Receipt of profit against non-performing exposures

Reversal of provision of principal against non-performing exposures

Reversal of provision against non-performing placements

Gain on partial settlement of term finance certificates

Receipt on sale of non-performing exposures

Liabilities written back

Net unrealised appreciation in fair value of investments
classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss'

Total income

Expenses

Remuneration of Management Company of the Fund

Remuneration of Trustee of the Fund

Annual fee - Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Transaction cost on securities

Settlement and bank charges

Legal and professional charges

Fees and subscription

Auditors' remuneration

Printing and other expenses

Provision against DHA Golf Club Platinum Membership Cards

Provision against non-performing certificate of investments

Provision against non-performing investments classified as 'at fair value
through profit or loss'

Provision against non-performing investment classified as 'available for sale’'

Provision against term finance facility

Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund

Impairment of equity securities classified as ‘available for sale'

Provision for doubtful income receivable

Total expenses

Net element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses)
included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed

Net income for the year

Earnings per unit

The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For KASB Funds Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive

Note 2013 2012
(Rupees in '000)

37,692 55,895
655 2,472
- 3,578
1,346 -
3,996 -
185 -
9,478 6,559
11,518 (21,387)
758& 759 24,140 -
7.5.6 13,623 -
757&10 26,500 59,915
7.4 41,867 -
754 5,553 -
20 1,630 -
73 - 2,172
178,183 109,204
14 10,481 9,105
15 755 672
16 335 294
175 37
30 200
374 737
280 240
21 593 455
193 313
8 2,698 -
- 10,922
731 17,609 -
75.1 30,973 -
10 45,787 -
18 1,150 -
7.4 1,700 -
- 10,124
113,133 33,099
65,050 76,105
3,484 (18,589)
68,534 57,516
22
Director



KASB Income Opportunity Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2013

2013 2012
(Rupees in '000)

Net income for the year 68,534 57,516

Other comprehensive income

Net unrealised appreciation in fair value of investments
classified as ‘available for sale' during the year 7.10 15,687 28,994

Net element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in
prices of units issued less those in units redeemed - amount

representing unrealised appreciation / (diminution) 5,970 4,185
Impairment of equity investment classified as ‘available for sale' 7.4 (1,700) -
Other comprehensive income for the year 19,957 33,179
Total comprehensive income for the year 88,491 90,695

The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For KASB Funds Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive Director



KASB Income Opportunity Fund

Distribution Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2013

Note

Accumulated losses brought forward 23

Net element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included
in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed

Net income for the year

Final Distribution at the rate of Re. 0.3 per unit for the year
ended June 30, 2012
[Date of Distribution: July 5, 2012]
- Issue of 1,982 bonus units (2012: Nil)
- Cash distribution

Accumulated losses carried forward 23

The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For KASB Funds Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive

2013 2012
(Rupees in '000)

(301,632) (363,333)
5,970 4,185
68,534 57,516
74,504 61,701
(134) -
(1,545) -
(1,679) -
(228,807) (301,632)
Director




KASB Income Opportunity Fund

Statement of Movement in Unit Holders’ Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2013

Net assets at the beginning of the year

Issue of 5,575,349 units (2012: 1,145,971 units)
Issue of 1,982 bonus units (2012: Nil units)
Redemption of 4,230,493 units (2012: 2,418,038 units)

Element of (income) / loss and capital (gains) / losses included in prices of
units issued less those in units redeemed:

- amount representing accrued (income) / loss and realised capital (gains) /
losses - transferred to the Income Statement

- amount representing unrealised capital (gains) / losses - transferred
to Distribution Statement

Net income for the year (excluding net unrealised appreciation in fair value of investments
classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss' and capital gain / (loss))
Capital gain / (loss) for the year

Net unrealised appreciation in fair value of investments classified
as ‘at fair value through profit or loss'

Net unrealised appreciation in fair value of investments classified
as 'available for sale' during the year

Impairment of equity investment classified as 'available for sale'

Net income for the year (including net unrealized appreciation in fair value of
investments classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss' and capital gain / (loss))

Net unrealised element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in
prices of units issued less those in units redeemed - amounts representing
unrealised appreciation / (diminution)

Final Distribution at the rate of Re. 0.3 per unit for the year ended June 30, 2012
[Date of Distribution: July 5, 2012]

- Issue of 1,982 bonus units (2012: Nil)

- Cash distribution

Net assets as at the end of the year

Net asset value per unit as at the beginning of the year

Net asset value per unit as at the end of the year
The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For KASB Funds Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive

Note

7.10

7.4

2013

2012

(Rupees in '000)

379,979 363,876
401,723 65,494
134
(302,471) (154,490)
99,386 (88,996)
(3,484) 18,589
(5,970) (4,185)
(9,454) 14,404
57,016 76,731
11,518 (21,387)
- 2,172
15,687 28,994
(1,700) -
82,521 86,510
5,970 4,185
(134) -
(1,545) -
(1,679) -
556,723 379,979
(Rupees)
67.8793 52.9665
80.1650 67.8793
Director




KASB Income Opportunity Fund

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the year

Adjustments for non cash and other items:

Net unrealised appreciation in fair value of investments classified
as 'at fair value through profit or loss'

Provision against DHA Golf Club Platinum Membership Cards

Provision against non-performing certificate of investments

Provision against non-performing investments classified as ‘at fair value through profit
or loss'

Provision against non-performing investment classified as ‘available for sale'

Provision against term finance facility

Impairment of equity securities classified as 'available for sale'

Provision for doubtful income receivable

Liabilities written back

Gain on partial settlement of term finance certificates

Reversal of provision against non-performing placements

Net element of (income) / loss and capital (gains) / losses included in prices
of units issued less those in units redeemed

Decrease / (increase) in assets

Lending under Margin Trading System
Income receivable

Investments

Certificate of Investment

DHA Golf Club Platinum Membership Cards
Placements

Term Finance Facility

Receivable against loan

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Increase / (decrease) increase in liabilities

Payable to Management Company of the Fund

Payable to Trustee of the Fund

Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid

Net receipts / (payments) from sale and redemption of units
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the yeal

The annexed notes 1 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For KASB Funds Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive

2013

2012

(Rupees in "000)

68,534 57,516

- (2,172)

2,698 -

- 10,922
17,609 -
30,973 -
45787 -

1,700 -

- 10,124

(1,630) -
(41,867) -
(26,500) (59,915)

(3,484) 18,589

93,820 35,064
(38,096) -
(16,021) 21,532

87,563 99,558

13,448 (5,149)

(8,299) -

26,500 -

8,050 (53,837)

(7,942) -

(5,526) 188

59,677 62,292

418 688

17 4

41 (242)
3,159 (700)
3,635 (250)
157,132 97,106

(1,545) -

99,252 (88,996)

97,707 (88,996)
254,839 8,110

36,338 28,228
291,177 36,338

Director




KASB Income Opportunity Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2013

1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

KASB Income Opportunity Fund ("the Fund" or "KIOF") was established under a Trust Deed executed
between KASB Funds Limited ("KFL") as Management Company and Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited ("CDC") as Trustee. The Trust Deed was executed on February 20, 2006 and the Fund
was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) on March 17, 2006 in
accordance with the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003
(NBFC Rules). The Fund has been assigned 'Aggressive Fixed Income' category under the
categorization criteria issued by SECP.

The Management Company of the Fund has been licensed to undertake asset management and
investment advisory services as Non-Banking Finance Company under the NBFC Rules issued by the
SECP. The registered office of the Management Company is situated at 9th Floor, Trade Centre, I. I.
Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakistan.

The SECP vide letter no. SCD/PR&DD/AMCW/CAML& KFL/333/2010 dated July 15, 2011

has sanctioned the Scheme of Arrangement of acquisition and simultaneous merger of Crosby Asset
Management (Pakistan) Limited (“CAMPL”) with and into KASB Funds Limited (“KFL”) in terms of
Section 282L of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rights to manage Crosby Dragon Fund, Crosby
Phoenix Fund and AMZ Plus Income Fund have been transferred to KFL with effect from July 20,
2011.

During the year, the Fund has engaged JCR-VIS as its new credit rating agency to carry out the Fund
stability rating and has disengaged PACRA as rating agency of the Fund. The JCR-VIS has assigned
management quality rating of AM3 to the Management Company and BBB-(f) stability rating to the
Fund.

The Fund is an open end fund and is listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange Limited. The objective of the
Fund is to provide an efficient investment medium whereby levels of risk and high liquidity by investors
can participate in a portfolio that will seek to generate high level of current income, as well as the
potential for capital growth.

On April 27, 2012, the Board of Directors of the Management Company has approved the merger of
AMZ Plus Income Fund (APIF) with and into KASB Income Opportunity Fund (KIOF). The merger
was approved by the majority of unit holders representing three-fourth in value of total outstanding units
of respective Funds in their meeting held on August 16, 2012 convened by the Management Company.
The Trustee of the Fund also gave consent to the merger vide its letter no.CDC/T&C-U1/DH/0206/2012
dated August 30, 2012. The merger was also sanctioned by the Securities and Exchange Commission

of Pakistan vide its letter no. SCD/AMCW/KASB/340/2012 dated November 20, 2012 in terms of
Regulation 58(1) (m) of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations,

2008. The Management Company has decided November 30, 2012 to be the effective date of merger
and the respective Funds have been merged accordingly with KASB Income Opportunity Fund to be
the surviving Fund. On and after the merger, assets and liabilities of AMZ Plus Income Fund have

been transferred to the Fund. Under the sanctioned merger:



2.1

2.2

a) the entire undertaking of AMZ Plus Income Fund (APIF) including all properties, assets,
receivables, liabilities and all rights and obligations have been transferred into and vested in KASB
Income Opportunity Fund (KIOF) as on the effective date.

b) under the arrangement / merger, the Fund has issued and allotted 512,666 units of Rs. 71.9540 each
in lieu of 363,351 units of Rs. 101.5217 each, held previously by the registered unit holders of APIF
in the swap ratio of 1.410938 units of KIOF for every 100 units of APIF, and

¢) upon the merger of APIF and issuance of units to its unit holders, the APIF stood dissolved without
winding up on the date of allotment of units.

d) The Net Asset Value of APIF on the effective date is as follows:

(Rupees in '000)

Assets

Balances with banks 888
Advance, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 100
Investments 37,830
Total Assets 38,818
Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,930
Net assets 36,888
Number of Units in issue Number 363,351
Net Asset Value per unit Rupees 101.5217

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
as a trustee of the Fund except as detailed in note 7.5.11. However, currently the change of title to the
assets pertaining to AMZ Plus Income Fund is in progress.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified
under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, the requirements of the Trust Deed, the Non Banking Finance
Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules) , the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations 2008) and directives issued
by the SECP. Wherever, the requirements of the Trust Deed, the NBFC Rules, 2003, the NBFC
Regulations, 2008 and the said directives differ with the requirements of these standards, the
requirements of the Trust Deed, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations, 2008 and the said directives
shall prevail.

New Standards, amendments to standards or interpretations which became effective during
the year

During the year certain amendments to Standards or new Interpretations became effective. However,
the amendments or interpretations did not have any material effect on the financial statements of the
Fund.



2.3

2.4

2.5

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting
standards that are not yet effective

A number of new Standards, amendments to Standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2013. None of these are expected to have a significant effect on the
financial statements of the Fund except the following set out below:

- Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IAS 32) — (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014).

- Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IFRS 7) — (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013).

- 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments to IAS 39) (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2014).

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that certain
financial assets are measured at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Fund and rounded to the nearest thousand rupees.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amount of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities which are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of its revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments
in applying accounting policies that have most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial
statements are as follows:

Investments stated at fair value & derivative financial instruments

The management company has determined fair value of certain investments by using quotations from
active market valuation done by Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan and Financial Markets Association
of Pakistan or using quotation from stock exchange. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in
time, based on market conditions and information about the financial instruments. These estimates are
subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matter of judgments (e.g. valuation, interest rates, etc.)
and therefore can not be determined with precision.
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Other assets

Judgment is also involved in assessing the realisability of asset balances.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements except stated otherwise.

Financial instruments

The Fund classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:

a)

b)

c)

d)

'At fair value through profit or loss'

An instrument is classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss' if it is held for trading or is
designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial instruments are designated as ‘at fair value
through profit or loss' if the Fund manages such investments and makes purchase and sale decisions
based on their fair value in accordance with the Fund's documented risk management or investment
strategy. Financial assets which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from
short term price fluctuation or are part of the portfolio in which there is recent actual pattern of short
term profit taking are classified as held for trading or a derivative.

Financial instruments as 'at fair value through profit or loss' are measured at fair value, and
changes therein are recognised in the Income Statement.

All derivatives in a net receivable position (positive fair value), are reported as financial assets held
for trading. All derivatives in a net payable position (negative fair value), are reported as financial
liabilities held for trading.

'Available for sale’

‘Available for sale’ financial assets are non-derivative that are either designated in this category or
not classified in any other category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market, other than those classified by the Fund as 'at fair value through
profit or loss' or ‘available for sale'. This includes receivable against sale of investments, placements,
certificates of investment and other receivables and are carried at amortised cost using effective
yield method, less impairment losses, if any.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than those 'at fair value through profit or loss', are measured at amortised
cost using the effective yield method.

Recognition

The Fund recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.



All purchases and sales of securities that require delivery within the time frame established by regulation
or market convention such as 'T+2' purchases and sales are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is
the date on which the Fund commits to purchase or sell the assets.

Financial liabilities are not recognised unless one of the parties has performed its part of the contract or
the contract is a derivative contract.

Measurement

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value (transaction price) plus, in case of a financial
instrument not 'at fair value through profit or loss', transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial instruments. Transaction costs on financial instruments ‘at fair value
through profit or loss' are expensed out immediately.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial instruments classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss'
and ‘available for sale' are measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' are recognised in the Income Statement.
Changes in the fair value of financial instruments classified as 'available for sale' are recognised in Unit
Holders' Funds until derecognised or impaired, when the accumulated adjustments recognised in Unit
Holders' Funds are included in the Income Statement. The financial instruments classified as loans and
receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost less provision for impairment, if any.

Fair value measurement principles
Basis of valuation of Term Finance / Sukuk Certificates

Investment in debt securities are valued at the rates determined and notified by Mutual Funds Association
of Pakistan (MUFAP) as per the methodology prescribed by SECP via Circular 1 of 2009, Circular 33 of
2012 and Circular 35 of 2012. The Circulars also specify criteria for application of discretionary discount
to yield of any debt security calculated by MUFAP and contain criteria for the provisioning of
non-performing debt securities.

Investment in thinly and non-traded debt securities with maturity upto six months are valued at their
amortised cost in accordance with the requirements of Circular 1 of 2009.

Basis of valuation of Government Securities

The fair value of the investments in government securities is determined by reference to the quotations
obtained from active market valuation done by Financial Markets Association of Pakistan.

The fair value of the investments in GoP ljarah sukuk certificates is determined by using the market
rates from Reuters page.

Securities under repurchase / resale agreements

Transactions of purchase under resale (reverse-repo) of marketable and government securities, are
entered into at contracted rates for specified periods of time. Securities purchased with a corresponding
commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse-repo) are not recognised in the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities. Amounts paid under these agreements are recognised as receivable in respect of
reverse repurchase transactions. The difference between purchase and resale price is treated as income
from reverse repurchase transactions and accrued over the life of the agreement. All reverse repo
transactions are accounted for on the settlement date.



Lending under margin trading system

Transactions of purchase under Margin Trading System (MTS) of marketable securities are entered
into contracted rates for specified periods of time. Securities purchased under MTS are not recognized
in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. However, the amount paid under the agreements are
recognized as receivable / lending under MTS. Profit is recognized on accrual basis using the effective
interest rate method. Cash releases are adjusted against the receivable as reduction in the amount of
receivables / lending under MTS. The maximum maturity of a MTS contract is 60 days out of which
25% exposure will be automatically released at expiry of every 15th day from the date of contract.

Impairment

Financial assets not carried ‘at fair value through profit or loss' are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of asset and that loss events had an impact on the future cash flows of that asset that can
be estimated reliably.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. In case of an investment in an equity security, a
significant or prolong decline in fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment. Impairment
losses are recognised in Income Statement. Any subsequent decrease in impairment loss on debt
securities classified as available-for-sale is recognised in Income Statement. However, any subsequent
recovery in the fair value of an impaired available for sale equity security is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

The Board of Directors of the Management Company has formulated a comprehensive policy for
making provision against non-performing investments in compliance with Circular 13 of 2009 issued by
SECP.

Derecognition

The Fund derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial assets expire, or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred on in
which the Fund neither transfers nor retain substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
does not retain control of the financial assets.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Unit holders' funds

Unit holders' funds representing the units issued by the Fund, is carried at the net asset value
representing the investors' right to a residual interest in the Fund assets.
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Issue and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications
received by the distributors during business hours on that day. The offer price represents the net asset
value per unit as of the close of the business day plus the allowable sales load, provision for transaction
costs and any provision for duties and charges, if applicable. The sales load is payable to the investment
facilitators, distributors and the Management Company.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable on units for which the distributors
receive redemption applications during business hours on that day. The redemption price represents the
net asset value per unit as of the close of the business day less any back-end load, any duties, taxes,
charges on redemption and any provision for transaction costs, if applicable.

Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of
units issued less those in units redeemed

An equalisation account called the "element of income / (loss) included in prices of units sold less those
in units redeemed" is created, in order to prevent the dilution of per unit income and distribution of
income already paid out on redemption.

The element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in the prices of units issued less those
in units redeemed to the extent that it is represented by income earned during the year is recognized in
income statement and to the extent that it is represented by unrealized appreciation / (diminution) arising
during the year on "available for sale securities' is included in distribution statement.

Preliminary expenses and floatation costs

Preliminary expenses and floatation costs represent expenditure incurred up to the close of Initial Public
Offer (IPO) period of the Fund. These costs are being amortised over a period of five years
commencing from the last day after the close of the IPO period as per the Trust Deed of the Fund.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive, obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly
reviewed and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Net asset value per unit

The net asset value per unit as disclosed on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities is calculated by
dividing the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.

Taxation

Current

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its

accounting income of that year, as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed
amongst the Fund's unit holders.
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Deferred

The Fund provides for deferred taxation using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary
differences between the amounts used for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation
purposes. In addition, the Fund also records deferred tax assets on unutilised tax losses to the extent that
these will be available for set off against future taxable profits.

However, the Fund intends to avail the tax exemption by distributing at least ninety percent of its
accounting income for the year as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit
holders. Accordingly, no deferred tax asset or liability and current tax has been recognised in these
financial statements.

Revenue recognition

- Gains/ (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the Income Statement on the date at
which the transaction takes place.

- Income on reverse repurchase transactions, lending under margin trading system, term finance
facilities and debt securities is recognised on a time proportion basis using effective interest rate
method.

- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on valuation of investments classified as financial assets ‘at fair
value through profit or loss' and derivatives are included in the Income Statement in the period in
which they arise.

- Profit on bank deposit is recognised on time proportion basis using effective interest rate method.

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

- Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less those
in units redeemed is included in the Income Statement on the date of issue and redemption of
units.

Expenses

All expenses including Management fee, Trustee fee and SECP annual fee are recognized in the Income
Statement on an accrual basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of deposits accounts maintained with banks. Cash equivalents are
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash
commitments rather than for investments and other purposes.

Other assets

Other assets are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.
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Dividend distributions and appropriations

Dividend distributions and appropriations are recorded in the period in which the distributions and

appropriations are approved.

BALANCES WITH BANKS - SAVING ACCOUNTS

This saving account carries mark-up at the rate of 5% to 9% per annum (2012: 10% to 11% per annum).

LENDING UNDER MARGIN TRADING SYSTEM

This represents receivable against Margin Trading System and carries the profit rate ranging from

11.99% to 17% and will mature at the option of financee subject to maximum of 60 days.

INCOME RECEIVABLE 2013

2012

(Rupees in '000)

Income accrued on bank deposits 1,793 413
Income accrued on Certificates of Investment - 214
Income accrued on term finance and sukuk certificates 32,321 17,612
Income accrued on Margin Trading System 146 -
34,260 18,239
INVESTMENTS
'At fair value through profit or loss'
- Government securities 7.2 - 14,941
- Fixed income and other debt securities 7.3 - 17,609
- 32,550
'Available for sale'
- Quoted Equity Securities 74.1 41,544 -
- Unquoted Equity Securities 74.2 21,800 -
- Fixed income and other debt securities 7.5 113,302 230,654
- Unquoted Preference Shares 7.6 4,567 -
181,213 230,654
- Advance against Pre Initial Public Offer investments 7.7 - -
181,213 263,204

The cost of the above investments as at June 30, 2013 amounted to Rs. 630.858 million (2012:

830.114 million).

Rs.
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Government securities - ‘at fair value through profit or loss'

Face value Balance as at June 30, 2013
Tenor As at Purchases Sales Maturities As at Carrying Market Appreciation/ Market
July 1, during the during during June 30, value value (Diminution) value as a
2012 year the year the year 2013 percentage
of total
investments

(Rupees in "000)

Treasury Bills

6 Months - Treasury Bills 15,000 30,000 45,000 - - - - - 0.00%
3 Months - Treasury Bills - 120,000 40,000 80,000 - - - - 0.00%
Fixed income and other debt securities -"at fair value
through profit or loss*
Certificates have a face value of Rs. 5,000 each unless stated otherwise:
Number of certificates Balances as at June 30, 2013 Market Outstanding
Name of the Investee Company As at Purchases Sales As at Carrying Market Appreciation/ value as a principal
July 01, during the during June 30, value value (Diminution) percentage value as a
2012 year the 2013 of net percentage
year assets of total
debt issue
Term Finance Certificates - Listed
Pace Pakistan Limited 731 1,000 - - 1,000 - - - 0.00% 0.33%
Trust Investment Bank Limited - 111 731 10,000 - - 10,000 - - - 0.00% 8.33%

Securities listed below have been classified as non-performing in accordance with the provisioning Circulars issued by the Securities and Exchange of Pakistan and the Fund's provisioning policy for non-performing exposure.

Accordingly, the market values stated above have been arrived at after taking into account provisions as under:
As at June 30, 2013

Outstanding Provision Provision held Net
balance recognized carrying
during value
the year

———————————————————— (Rupees in '000) ---------------------

Pace Pakistan Limited 7.3.2 4,993 - (4,993) -
Trust Investment Bank Limited - I11 7.3.3 18,742 (17,609) (18,742) -

On August 14, 2011, Pace Pakistan Limited has defaulted on account of payment of profit and principal due amounting to Rs. 0.391 million and Rs. 0.001 million respectively. However, the amount of principal has been
subsequently paid by the borrower. The Fund has recognized full provision against the outstanding principal amounting to Rs. 4.993 million and accrued profit amounting to Rs. 0.391 million. Moreover, the Fund has suspended
further accrual of profit there against in accordance with the provisioning policy of the Fund and applicable SECP Circulars. Management is continuously monitoring the Fund’s exposure to this investment and is making necessary
efforts for the recovery of the amount.

The above is without prejudice to the Fund's claim against the above company for the entire exposure and unrecognized mark-up and other charges etc.
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74.1

7.4.2

On October 2, 2012, Trust Investment Bank Limited has defaulted on account of payment of profit and principal due amounting to Rs. 1.280 million and Rs. 6.247 million respectively. The security has been classified as
non-performing by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan on October 18, 2012. The Fund has recognized full provision against the outstanding principal amounting to Rs. 18.742 million and has suspended further accrual of
mark-up there against in accordance with the provisioning policy of the Fund and applicable SECP Circulars. Management is continuously monitoring the Fund’s exposure to this investment and is making necessary efforts for the
recovery of the amount.

The above is without prejudice to the Fund's claim against the above company for the entire exposure and unrecognized mark-up and other charges etc.

Equity Securities - (Face value of Rs. 10 per share) - 'Available for sale"

Name of the Investee Company Number of shares Balances as at June 30, 2013 Carrying
Asat  Transferred Received in Sales As at Carrying Market Impairment Appreciation/ value as a
July 01, from APIF settlement during June 30, cost value (Diminution) percentage
2012 (Refer during the year 2013 of net
Note 1) the year assets

Quoted Equity Securities
Agritech Limited 741 - - 3,587,600 . 3,587,600 41,867 41,544 - (323) 7.46%

Unquoted Equity Securities
Tricon Developers Limited 742 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 23,500 21,800 (1,700) - 3.92%

As more fully explained in note 7.5.2, this represent shares received in partial settlement of outstanding payment / redemption obligation by Azgard Nine Limited (ANL). As per Circular 7 of 2009 issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) an "aggressive fixed income scheme" shall not invest / hold equity securities. However, SECP vide its letter no. SCD/AMCW/DD-ZRK/KFL/137 /2012 dated May 16, 2012 has granted
exemption to the Fund from holding such equity securities received in settlement of such exposures. Currently these shares are held by Pak Brunei Investment Company Limited as beneficial owner on behalf of the Fund in terms of
Shareholder's Investment Agreement dated July 26, 2012.

The above ordinary shares of Agritech Limited are subject to sale lock-in for a period of 5 years in terms of the Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) between the ANL and various lenders including the Fund. However, as per the
SPA, the sales restriction is not applicable to transactions between the lenders of ANL.

These represents ordinary shares of Tricon Developers Limited (TDL) received from Trust Investment Bank Limited in settlement of its Preference Shares in terms of the settlement deed executed on November 20, 2012. These
shares were transferred into the Fund from AMZ Plus Income Fund following the merger of the Funds as detailed in note 1 to these financial statements at carrying value of Rs 23.5 million as on the effective date of the merger. As
per Circular 7 of 2009 issued by the SECP an "aggressive fixed income scheme" shall not invest or hold equity securities. Further Regulation 55(3) of the NBFC Regulations 2008 prohibits investing in unlisted equity securities.
However, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide its letter no. SCD/AMCW/MF/DD-ZRK/APIF/333/2012 dated November 12, 2012 has granted exemption to the Fund for holding such shares in its portfolio.

In the absence of quoted price, the management has adopted a policy to value such shares at break-up value as per the latest audited financial statements of the investee company. However, since the latest audited financial
statements of Tricon Developers Limited for the year ended 30 June 2012 are not available with the management, the Investment Committee in their meeting held on June 27, 2013 has decided to value such shares at Rs. 10.9 per
shares after applying provision of Re.0.85 per share to break-up value of Rs. 11.75 per share determined in accordance with audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2011. As per Regulation 66 (J) of Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 a security not listed or quoted on a stock exchange, other than Government Securities or debt security, shall be valued at investment price or its break-up value as per
last audited accounts, whichever is lower. The Investment Committee considers appropriate to create a provision of Re.0.85 per share amounting to Rs. 1.7 million there against as they expect a decline in net assets of the Investee
Company. The dilution has been recognised as impairment in income statement.
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Fixed income and other debt securities - 'Available for sale'

Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk Certificates

Name of the Investee Company

Term Finance Certificates - Unlisted

Avari Hotels Limited

Azgard Nine Limited

Azgard Nine Limited - Issue - V

Gharibwal Cement Limited(7.5.4)

Jahangir Siddiqui Company Limited

Orix Leasing Pakistan Limited

New Allied Electronics Industries
(Private) Limited

Al - Zamin Leasing Modaraba (7.5.6)

Flying Board and Papers Limited(7.5.7)

Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited

Agritech Limited - 5th Issue

Sukuk Certificates - Unlisted

Eden Builders Limited

Eden Housing Limited

Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited - |

New Allied Electronics Industries
(Private) Limited -1

New Allied Electronics Industries
(Private) Limited -1

New Allied Electronics Industries
(Private) Limited -11

Security Leasing Corporation Limited

Kohat Cement Company Limited(7.5.13)

Agritech Limited - Issue - V

Number of certificates

Balances as at June 30, 2013

As at
July 01,
2012

19,760
44,400

3,000
7,500
40

13,000
14,000

7,200
5,185
26,600

32,000

8,600
500
17,500
8,470

Transferred Purchased / Sales /
from APIF  received in Matured
(Refer settlement during the
Note 1) during the year
year
- 14,595 -
- - 3,000
- - 40
- - 14,000
- 8,000 8,000
- 5,999 -
- 1,452 -
- - 6,500
256,000 - -
- 2,500 -

As at
June 30,
2013

19,760
44,400
14,595

7,500
13,000

5,999
1,452

7,200
5,185
20,100

32,000
256,000
8,600
500

20,000
8,470

Carrying Market Appreciation/
cost value (Diminution)
--------------- (Rupees in 000) ---------------

34,535 38,024 3,489
18,653 18,718 65
9,824 9,102 (722)
63,012 65,844 2,832
6,680 6,765 85
28,876 28,876 -
503 450 (53)
8,120 11,367 3,247
44,179 47,458 3,279
107,191 113,302 6,111

Market
value as a
percentage

of net
assets

6.83%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
3.36%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
1.63%
0.00%

1.22%
0.00%
5.19%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.08%

2.04%
0.00%

Outstanding
principal
value as a
percentage

of total
debt issue

2.63%
8.88%
2.09%
0.00%
3.00%
0.00%

7.22%
0.00%
0.00%
4.00%
1.21%

1.44%
3.55%
1.26%

1.33%
10.67%
5.73%
0.33%

4.00%
2.65%
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Securities listed below have been classified as non-performing in accordance with the provisioning Circulars of the SECP and the Fund's provisioning policy for non-performing exposure.
Accordingly, the market values stated above have been arrived at after taking into account provisions as under:

As at June 30, 2013

Outstanding Provision Provision Net carrying
balance recognized held value
during
the year

(Rupees in '000)

Azgard Nine Limited TFC Refer Note 7.5.2 177,458 - (177,458) -
Azgard Nine Limited - Issue - V TFC Refer Note 7.5.3 72,975 - (72,975)

New Allied Electronics Industries (Private) Limited TFC Refer Note 755 27,479 - (27,479) -
Eden Housing Limited Sukuk Refer Note 7.5.8 9,722 (5,055) (9,722) -
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited - | Sukuk Refer Note 7.5.9 90,237 (25,555) (61,361) 28,876
New Allied Electronics Industries (Private) Limited -I Sukuk Refer Note 7.5.10 10,000 - (10,000) -
New Allied Electronics Industries (Private) Limited -I Sukuk Refer Note 7.5.11 80,000 - (80,000) -
New Allied Electronics Industries (Private) Limited -1 Sukuk Refer Note 7.5.12 42,183 - (42,183) -
Agritech Limited Sukuk Refer Note 7.5.14 38,115 - (38,115) -
Agritech Limited - 5th Issue TFC Refer Note 7.5.15 7,260 (363) (7,260) -

(30,973)

On June 4, 2010, Azgard Nine Limited (ANL) has defaulted on account of payment of principal and profit amounting to Rs. 22.18 million and Rs. 16.22 million respectively. The Fund
has recognized full provision against its investment and accrued profit in terms of provisioning policy of the Fund and applicable SECP Circulars.

During the year, the Fund along with other lenders, entered into Share Transfer and Debt Swap Agreement dated April 12, 2012 as amended by the First Supplemental Share

Transfer and Debt Swap Agreement dated July 26, 2012 with Azgard Nine Limited (ANL) whereby ANL has agreed to transfer its shareholding in Agritech Limited (AGL) to

existing lenders / creditors in partial settlement of outstanding payment / redemption obligations. Accordingly, ANL has transferred 3,587,600 ordinary shares of AGL, in partial
settlement of its obligations towards the Fund, to Pak Brunei Investment Company Limited who holds these shares as beneficial owner on behalf of the Fund. Pak Brunei Investment
Company Limited holds such shares in terms of Shareholders' Investment Agreement dated July 26, 2012. The Fund has recognized those shares at prevailing market rate and
recognized Rs 41.867 million as gain on partial settlement. Further, on June 28, 2012, ANL has further issued term finance certificates amounting to Rs. 72.975 million in settlement of
its outstanding obligation. The Fund has carried those certificates at Nil value as explained in note 7.5.3.

As more fully explained in note 7.5.2, this represent term finance certificates amounting to Rs. 72.975 million received in partial settlement of outstanding payments / redemptions by
Azgard Nine Limited (ANL) in terms of Investment Agreement dated June 28, 2012. The Fund has carried this certificates at Nil value. This certificates are interest free and
repayment will commence from March 31, 2014.
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7.5.5

7.5.6

7.5.7
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7.5.10

On July 18, 2009, Gharibwal Cement Limited (GCL) has defaulted on account of payment of profit and principal due amounting to Rs. 3.67 million and Rs. 0.008 million respectively.
However, the amount of principal has been subsequently paid by GCL on August 11, 2009. The Fund has recognized full provision against its investment and accrued profit in terms of
provisioning policy of the Fund and applicable SECP Circulars. On March 01, 2013, the Fund has disposed these certificates at an agreed price of Rs.38 per certificate (amounting to
Rs. 5.553 million) and recognized resulting proceeds as gain in these financial statements.

On November 15, 2008, New Allied Electronics Industries (Private) Limited (NAEIL) defaulted on account of payment of mark-up and principal due amounting to Rs. 2.41 million
and Rs. 5.42 million respectively. However, subsequently the Fund received partial payments against the outstanding mark-up. The Fund has recognized full provision against its
investment and accrued profit in terms of provisioning policy of the Fund and applicable SECP Circulars. Management is continuously monitoring the Fund’s exposure to this
investment and is making necessary efforts for the recovery of the amount.

The above is without prejudice to the Fund's claim against the above company for the entire exposure and unrecognized mark-up and other charges etc.

On August 12, 2010 the Invest Capital Investment Bank Limited (ICIBL) (formerly known as Al Zamin Leasing Modaraba) has defaulted on repayment of principal and profit
amounting to Rs 1.46 million and Rs 0.71 million respectively. The Fund has recognized full provision there against. On August 13, 2012, the Fund entered into an agreement with
ICIBL whereby it was mutually agreed that the whole outstanding liability of the Fund i.e. profit and principal due amounting to Rs. 13.871 mil and Rs. 54.493 million respectively shall
be settled against a sum of Rs. 13.623 million. The settled amount is duly received by the Fund and has recognized Rs 13.623 million as recovery against non-performing exposure.

These represent term finance certificates of Flying Board and Papers Limited received in settlement of Letter of Placement with Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited. The Fund has
carried this certificates at Nil value. During the year the Fund has disposed these certificates to the Management Company at an agreed price of Rs. 2,750 per certificate (amounting
to Rs. 22 million) and has recognized resulting proceeds as gain in these financial statements.

On December 29, 2011, Eden Housing Limited (EHL) has defaulted on account of payment of mark-up and principal amounting to Rs. 0.69 million and Rs. 1.22 million respectively.
However, both principal and profit due was subsequently paid by EHL. The Fund has recognized full provision against its investment and has suspended further accrual of mark-up
there against such term finance certificates . During the year, the Fund has received all amounts from EHL and reversed the provision amounting to Rs. 6.294 million against the
outstanding principle in accordance with the provisioning policy of the Fund and applicable SECP Circulars. Management is continuously monitoring the Fund’s exposure to this
investment and is making necessary efforts for the recovery of the amount.

The above is without prejudice to the Fund's claim against the above company for the entire exposure and unrecognized mark-up and other charges etc.

Owing to financial difficulties, Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited (MLCFL) has defaulted in payment of interest due on September 3, 2011, December 3, 2011, March 3, 2011 and
June 3, 2012. On June 13, 2012 MLCFL has entered into restructuring agreement with its lender and according to the agreement MLCFL will pay quarterly payments starting from
September 3, 2012. During the year, the Fund has received all the amount as per restructured agreement from MLCFL and has reversed the provision amounting to Rs. 17.846 million
thus maintained the provision of Rs. 61.361 million in aggregate against the outstanding principal in accordance with the provisioning policy of the Fund and applicable SECP Circulars.
Management is continuously monitoring the Fund’s exposure to this investment and is making necessary efforts for the recovery of the amount.

The above is without prejudice to the Fund's claim against the above company for the entire exposure and unrecognized markup and other charges etc.

On October 25, 2008, New Allied Electronics Industries (Private) Limited (NAEIL) had paid full mark-up amounting to Rs. 0.42 million, however, no payment was made against the
principal due amounting to Rs. 0.63 million. The Fund has recognized full provision against its investment and has suspended further accrual of mark-up there against in accordance
with the provisioning policy of the Fund and applicable SECP Circulars. Management is continuously monitoring the Fund’s exposure to this investment and is making necessary
efforts for the recovery of the amount.
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7.5.14

7.5.15

7.6

The above is without prejudice to the Fund's claim against the above company for the entire exposure and unrecognized mark-up and other charges etc.

This represents the term finance certificates of New Allied Electronics Industries (Private) Limited (NAEIL) which were transferred from AMZ Plus Income Fund (APIF) to the
Fund on effective date of the merger. These certificates were held by APIF at Nil value. On November 20, 2012, APIF has received 64,000 certificates from Trust Investment Bank
Limited (TIBL) in settlement of its Preference Shares. These certificates are also carried at Nil value and has been transferred to the Fund on the effective date of the merger.

The above is without prejudice to the Fund's claim against the above company for the entire exposure and unrecognized mark-up and other charges etc.

On December 3, 2008, New Allied Electronics Industries (Private) Limited (NAEIL) had defaulted on payment of mark-up amounting to Rs. 3.25 million. However, subsequently the
Fund had received partial payments against the accrued mark-up. The Fund has recognized full provision against its investment and accrued profit in terms of provisioning policy of the
Fund and applicable SECP Circulars. Management is continuously monitoring the Fund’s exposure to this investment and is making necessary efforts for the recovery of the amount.
The above is without prejudice to the Fund's claim against the above company for the entire exposure and unrecognized mark-up and other charges etc.

On September 14, 2011, Kohat Cement Company Limited has entered into a restructuring agreement according to which the payment of interest for first four quarters commencing
September 20, 2011 will be deferred and retired through payments made from quarter beginning September 20, 2014 to the quarter ending June 20, 2016. The investment has been
classified as performing by Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan (MUFAP).

On May 3, 2011 the Fund acquired 8,470 sukuks of Agritech Limited from KASB Islamic Income Opportunity Fund, a related party. Agritech Limited had defaulted in payment of
mark up due on August 6, 2010 and was classified as non-performing at the time of acquisition by the Fund. The amount of investment has been fully provided by the Fund in
accordance with the provisioning policy of the Fund and applicable SECP Circulars. Management is continuously monitoring the Fund's exposure to this investment and is making
necessary efforts for recovery of the amount.

The above is without prejudice to the Fund's claim against the above company for the entire exposure and unrecognized mark-up and other charges etc.

On March 22, 2013 the Fund acquired 1,452 Term Finance Certificates of Agritech Limited from KASB Islamic Income Opportunity Fund, a related party. Agritech Limited had
defaulted in payment of mark up and was classified as non-performing on January 17, 2011. The amount of investment has been fully provided by the Fund in accordance with the
provisioning policy of the Fund and applicable SECP Circulars. Management is continuously monitoring the Fund's exposure to this investment and is making necessary efforts for
recovery of the amount.

The above is without prejudice to the Fund's claim against the above company for the entire exposure and unrecognized mark-up and other charges etc.

Unquoted Preference Shares - (Face value of Rs. 10 per share) - '‘Available for sale’

Name of the Investee Company Number of shares Balance as at June 30, 2013 Market
Asat  Transferred Sales As at Carrying Market Appreciation/  value as a
July 01, from APIF during June 30, 2013 cost value (Diminution) percentage
2012 (Refer to the year of net assets
Note 1)

First Dawood Investment Bank Limited 7.6.1 - 3,044,380 - 4,567 4,567 - 0.82%
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1.7

7.7.1

7.7.2

These are 5 years convertible, cumulative, non-voting, non participatory, callable preference shares carrying fixed dividend of 4% per annum on a cumulative basis payable
annually. Call option for redemption of preference shares can be exercised by the borrower after two years from the date of issuance of preference shares at par value. A
conversion option is also available to the Fund for conversion of preference shares into ordinary shares of First Dawood Investment Bank Limited (FDIBL) at par value
exercisable at any time after the date of issuance of preference shares until the exercise of call option. Furthermore, the issuer, upon receiving the conversion notice from the
investor, has an option to call the preference shares along with cumulative dividend. The Fund has received these preference shares in settlement of defaulted amount by the
borrower amounting to Rs. 30.44 million against initial investment in unsecured placement with FDIBL. These preference shares are non performing and were transferred into
the Fund from AMZ Plus Income Fund following the merger of the two Funds as detailed in note 1 to these financial statements at carrying value of Rs. 4.567 million as on
the effective date of the merger.

These preference shares have been valued at break-up value of Rs.1.50 per share of FDIBL as per the audited accounts for the year ended June 30, 2012 in line with Regulation
66(j) of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and as per the discussion of the management of the Fund with SECP.

Advance against Pre Initial Public Offer Investments

Number of certificates As at June 30, 2013
Name of the Investee Company As at Transferred Sales As at Carrying Market Appreciation/ Carrying  Outstanding
July 01, from APIF during the June 30, Cost value (Diminution) value as a principal
2012 (Refer year 2013 percentage  value as a
Note 1) of net percentage
assets of total
debt issue
--------------- (Rupees in 000) ---------------
Dewan Cement Limited 7.7.1 30,000 - - 30,000 - - - 0.00% 3.00%
Dewan Cement Limited 7.7.2 - 10,000 - 10,000 - - - 0.00% 1.00%

This represents investment in advance against term finance certificates of Dewan Cement Limited (DCL). The investment in DCL is secured against collaterals. In view of
default by the borrower, the fund has recognized full provision against its investment and has suspended accrual of markup there against in light of provisioning policy of the
fund duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Management. Company.

Management is continuously monitoring the Fund’s exposure to this investment and is making necessary efforts for the recovery of the amount. The above is without prejudice
to the Fund's claim against the above company for the entire exposure and unrecognized mark-up and other charges etc.

On November 20, 2012, AMZ Plus Income Fund (APIF) has entered into settlement agreement with Trust Investment Bank Limited (TIBL) whereby TIBL has transferred
its investment in Pre - IPO of Dewan Cement Limited to APIF in settlement against its Preference Shares. APIF has carried it at Nil value and has transferred it to the Fund
on the effective date of the merger.
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781

7.8.2

7.8.3

7.8.4

7.85

7.8.6

Non-Compliance with the Investment Criteria as specified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

As at June 30, 2013, the Fund is non-compliant in respect of the following investments:

Name of Non-Compliant Investment

Tricon Developers Limited 7.8.1
Agritech Limited 7.8.2
First Dawood Investment Bank Limited 7.8.3
Trust Investment Bank Limited 7.8.1
InvestCap Investment Bank Limited 7.8.4

New Allied Electronics Industries
(Private) Limited -I 7.85
KASB Modaraba 7.8.6

Type of
Investment

Unquoted ordinary shares
Quoted ordinary shares
Preference Shares

Receivable against lease facility
DHA Golf Club Platinum
Membership Cards

Term Finance Certificate
Certificate of Musharaka

Value of
Investment
before
provision

23,500
41,544

4,567
41,099

10,374

90,000

Provision
Held If any

1,700

41,099
2,801

90,000

Value of
Investment
after
Provision

21,800
41,544
4,567

7,573

% of Net
assets based
on carrying

value

3.92%
7.46%
0.82%
0.00%

1.36%

0.00%
0.00%

% of
Gross
assets

3.86%
7.37%
0.81%
0.00%

1.34%

0.00%
0.00%

The SECP vide its letter no. SCD/AMCW/MF/DD-ZRK/APIF/333/2012 dated November 12, 2012 has granted exemption from holding such shares and lease portfolio in the

Fund's portfolio.

The SECP vide its letter no. SCD/AMCW/DD-ZRK/KFL/137/2012 dated May 16, 2012 has granted exemption from holding such shares in the Fund's portfolio.

The SECP vide its letter no. SCD/AMCW/KASB/340/2012 has granted exemption for merger which includes transfer of First Dawood from AMZ Plus Income Fund.

The SECP vide its letter no. SCD/AMCW/KAAF/417/2013 dated February 19, 2013 has granted exemption from holding such cards in the Fund's portfolio for three months.

(Refe Note 8)

This Term Finance Certificate (TFC) has been fully provided by the Fund, therefore, as per management the said the TFC is not violation of Regulation 55 of Non-Banking

Finance Companies 2008.

During the year, the Fund has invested in Certificate of Musharaka of KASB Modaraba (connected person) without Board approval and has taken exposure of said
certificates more than 10% of the net assets, resulted in non-compliance with Regulations 59(1) and 55(5) of Non-Banking Finance Companies, 2008.
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SIGNIFICANT TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF TERM FINANCE AND SUKUK CERTIFICATES

Significant terms and conditions of Term Finance and Sukuk Certificates outstanding as at June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Name of security

Pace Pakistan Limited

Trust Investment Bank Limited

Agritech Limited - TFC V Issue

Avari Hotels Limited

Kohat Cement Limited

Security Leasing Corporation Limited

Eden Builders Limited

Jahangir Siddiqui and Company Limited

New Allied Electronics Industries Limited TFC
New Allied Electronics Industries Limited Sukuk |
New Allied Electronics Industries Limited Sukuk I1
Azgard Nine Limited

Agritech Limited

Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited - |

Eden Housing Limited

Saudi Pak Leasing Company Ltd.

Net unrealised appreciation in fair value of investments

classified as ‘available for sale’

Fair value of investments
Less: cost of investments

Remaining Mark-up rate (per

principal
(Per TFC/
Sukuk)

4,493
1,874
5,000
1,861

758
1,453

938
2,495
2,114

313
4,905
3,997
4,500
4,489
1,875

3,035

Net unrealised diminution in fair value of investments classified as

‘available for sale' at beginning of the year

Provision against non-performing classified as 'available for sale'

investments

Impairment against debt securities classified as "available for sale

Opening balance

Add: charge for the year
less: reversal for the year

Closing balance

annum)

6 months KIBOR +
2%
6 months KIBOR +
1.85%

11.00%

1 year KIBOR +
2.5%
6 months KIBOR +
2.5%

3 month KIBOR +
2.3%
6 month KIBOR +
1.7%
3 month KIBOR +
3%
3 month KIBOR +
2.2%
6 month KIBOR +
2.2%
6 month KIBOR +
2.25%
6 month KIBOR +
2%
3 months KIBOR +
1%
6 month KIBOR +
2.5%

Issue
date

February 15,
2008

July 04, 2008
July 1, 2011

April 30, 2009

December 20,
2007

June 01, 2007

September
08, 2008

July 04, 2007
May 15, 2007

July 27, 2007

December 03,
2007
December 04,
2007
August 06,
2008
December 03,
2007
March 31,
2008
March 13,
2008

2013

Maturity
date

February 15,
2017
July 04,
2013

July 1, 2017

October 30,
2014
December
20, 2015
January 19,
2022
March 08,
2014
July 04,
2013
May 15,
2011
July 27,
2012
December
03, 2012
4 December
2014
August 06,
2015
December
03, 2018
September
29, 2014
March 13,
2017

2012

(Rupees in "000)

181,213 230,308
(607,623) (641,432)
(426,410) (411,124)
411,124 430,802

30,973 9,316
442,097 440,118
15,687 28,994
472,638 466,710
30,973 35,269

(65,316) (29,341)

(34,343) 5,928
438,295 472,638
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DHA GOLF CLUB PLATINUM MEMBERSHIP CARDS

On September 30, 2008 the Fund had invested in unsecured placements with InvestCap Investment Bank Limited
(formerly Al-Zamin Leasing Corporation Limited) amounting to Rs. 50 million for a period of thirteen days. However, on
respective maturity dates principal amounting to Rs. 30 million in aggregate was paid by the borrower and the remaining
principal amounting to Rs. 20 million was rolled over several times with principal repayment of Rs. 9.6 million only. Due
to delays in payments by the respective counter party, the Fund has recognised provision amounting to Rs. 2.075 million
against such placements till 30 June 2012 and has suspended accrual of mark-up thereagainst in line with provisioning
policy of the Fund duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company.

On November 27, 2012, the Fund entered into settlement agreement with the counter party whereby it was agreed by the
borrower to settle its total outstanding balance towards the Fund and KASB Asset Allocation Fund (fund under common
management) against transfer of 27 Defence Housing Authority (DHA) Golf Club Platinum Membership Cards at an
agreed price of Rs. 1.851 million for each card. On November 30, 2012, the Trustee received the agreed Platinum DHA
Golf Club Membership Cards. On January 21, 2013 The Trustee of the Fund granted consent on above settlement subject
to the approval of SECP. The SECP vide letter no. SCD/AMCW/KAAF/417/2013 dated February 19, 2013 approved
such settlements subject to the following conditions:

i) DHA Golf Club Membership cards shall not be valued at the price more than the gold price published / disclosed on the
website of Defense Housing Authority or any other price / criteria that the SECP may allow.

ii) Any change in the valuation or provisioning on those membership cards will be first approved by the SECP.

iii) The management company shall made active efforts to sell the membership cards at earliest and in the best interest of
the unit holders.

iv) The management company shall disclose the book and market value of the membership cards in the published accounts
of the Fund.

Accordingly, the Fund has recognized such Cards at value of Rs. 1.35 million per Card based on the price of Gold Card
available on DHA Glof Club's website and has recognized further provision amounting to Rs. 0.726 million thereagianst.
The above approval from SECP expired on May 19, 2013 against which the management company requested an
extention vide letter dated May 17, 2013, to which SECP has not acceded through its letter
SCD/AMCW/KAAF/569/2013 dated June 3, 2013. The SECP has further advised management to immediately sell the
Cards through transparent and fair process with the approval of Trustee of the Fund under intimation to SECP.

Subsequent to year end, the management company vide its letter no. KFL/SMN/1307/3 dated July 19, 2013 has apprised
the SECP with respect to its efforts for selling such cards and further informed that taking a cautious approach the
investment committee has decided to make a provision against the valuation of these cards, valuing them at Rs. 1 million
each. The said provision has been recognised amounting to Rs. 1.972 million as at June 30, 2013. The management
company has not obtained prior SECP approval against such provision as required under the SECP letter dated February
19, 2013 and has admitted the said fact in its aforementioned intimation letter to the SECP.

Reconciliation between net aseets announced at year end June 30, 2013 and net assets value reported in
these financial statements

Net Assets Net Assets
Value Value per
unit

(Rupees in '000)  (Rupees)
Net Assets Value announced by the Fund at year end June 30, 2013 558,695 80.45

Less: provision against DHA Golf Club Platinum Membership Cards (1,972) (0.28)

Net Assets Value as disclosed in these financial statements 556,723 80.17
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12.

13.

PLACEMENTS

Due to continuous defaults in repayment of principal by Saudi Pak Leasing Company (SPLC) and Trust Investment Bank
Limited (TIBL), the Fund has recognized full provision against their outstanding principal amounting to Rs. 86 million and
Rs. 3.5 million respectively.

On December 28, 2011 the Fund entered into settlement agreement with SPLC whereby term finance facility as detailed in
note 10 was received by the Fund. The balance of Rs. 10 million is to be paid in monthly instalments of Rs 0.375 million
each till March 31, 2014 and remaining balance of Rs. 10.428 million is still outstanding there against. In view of
irregularities in repayments made by SPLC in past, currently the Fund is recognizing those payments on receipt basis.
During the year, the Fund has received Rs. 4.5 million (Rs. 10.908 million in aggregate) against the aforesaid exposure.
TERM FINANCE FACILITY

This represents term finance facilities availed by Wisdom Education System (Private) Limited (WESPL) from Saudi Pak
Leasing Company Limited (SPLC). On June 11, 2012, the Fund has entered into novation agreement with SPLC whereby
rights of SPLC to term payments from WESPL stand transferred to the Fund. The novation agreement was part of
settlement against the Fund's investment in the letter of placement with SPLC. The principal amount will be repaid by
WESPL till October 31, 2016 and carrying mark-up at 15% per annum. During the year, the Fund has received Rs. 4.5
million from WESPL as repayment of principal. However, in view of irregularities in payment of outstanding principal by
WESPL, the Fund has fully provided the outstanding principal amounting to Rs. 45.787 million in line with the provisioning
policy of the Fund duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company and will account for recovery,

if any, on receipt basis.

RECEIVABLE AGAINST LOAN

On August 3, 2012, the Fund has entered into an agreement with Security Leasing Corporation Limited (SLCL) in which it
was mutually agreed that the previous agreement to transfer of redeemable preference shares was cancelled and a new
arrangement was settled. According to the new arrangement, the Fund is entitled to receive an amount of Rs. 25 million
(interest free) through 96 monthly instalments. As at June 30, 2013, the receivable from SLCL has been valued by applying
discount rate of 20% to the future receipts in line with the decision of the Investment Committee of the Fund to which
Trustee to the Fund has acceded after allowing provision of Rs. 2.5 million there against. The said loan is transferred to the
Fund following the merger of AMZ Plus Income Fund into the Fund as detailed in note 1 to these financial statements.

RECEIVABLE AGAINST LEASE FACILITY

On November 20, 2012, the Fund has entered into settlement agreement with Trust Investment Bank Limited (TIBL)
against its Preference Shares. As per the settlement arrangement TIBL has transferred certain lease facilities from its
portfolio of leases to APIF. APIF has carried those lease facilities portfolio at Nil value and has transferred to the Fund on
the effective date of the merger. The following leases were transferred to APIF from TIBL:

Type of Investment Name of the Party Lease Book value
receivable as
at June 30,
2013
(Rupees)
Lease facility Ahmed Cold Agency 3,394,597 -
Lease facility Alvi Transport 3,305,535 -
Lease facility Anwar Kamal 9,217,428 -
Lease facility Gul Azam Enterprises 5,143,218 -
Lease facility Jahangir & Co. 6,996,405 -
Lease facility Shah Mehmood Khan Transport Company 7,882,968 -
Lease facility Malik Ahsan Awan Transport Company 3,529,465 -
Lease facility Shad Muhammad 1,629,790 -
41,099,406 -

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide its letter no. SCD/AMCW/MF/DD-ZRK/APIF/333/2012 dated
November 12, 2012 has provided its consent to hold the lease receivables in the Fund's portfolio. The proceed will be
recognized against above facility on receipt basis.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Deposit with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 131 5,375 125

Deposit with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 13.2 200 100

Prepaid expense 176 .
5,751 225

This represents deposit with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited in respect of Bond Automated Trading
System (BATS).

This represents deposit with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited on account of initial deposit for opening of
investor account for electronic transfer of book-entry securities.
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PAYABLE TO MANAGEMENT COMPANY OF THE FUND

Under the provisions of the NBFC Regulations, 2008, the Management Company of the Fund is
entitled to a remuneration, during the first five years of the Fund, of an amount not exceeding three
percent of the average annual net assets of the Fund and thereafter, of an amount equal to two
percent of such assets of the Fund. During the year, remuneration of Management Company is
charged at the rate of 2 percent per annum of the average annual net assets of the Fund. This also
includes Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 16% on services rendered by management company, levied

by the provisional government of Sindh. The amendment was effective from July 1, 2011. This further
includes Federal Excise Duty on the remuneration of the management company, levied by the federal

government of Pakistan, at the rate of 16% through enactment of Finance Bill, 2013 effective from
June 13, 2013.

PAYABLE TO TRUSTEE OF THE FUND

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the
provisions of the Trust Deed. The following tariff structure as amended by the Trustee of the Fund
vide letter no. CDC/T&C-UI/DH/328/2010 dated December 18, 2010 is applicable based on net
assets of the Fund.

Net Assets of the Fund (Average NAV) Tariff per annum

Up to Rs. 1,000 million Rs. 0.6 million or 0.17% p.a. of NAV,
whichever is higher

Rs. 1,000 million to 5,000 million Rs. 1.7 million plus 0.085% p.a. of NAV

exceeding Rs. 1,000 million

On an amount exceeding 5,000 million Rs. 5.1 million plus 0.07% p.a. of NAV

exceeding Rs. 5,000 million

PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

Under the provisions of the NBFC Regulations, 2008, income fund is required to pay an amount
equal to 0.075% of the average annual net assets of the Fund, as annual fee to the SECP.

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES 2013 2012

(Rupees in '000)

Auditors' remuneration payable 678 335
Legal and professional charges payable 220 210
Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 18 4,522 3,372
Others 337 311

5,757 4,228
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CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Finance Act 2008 introduced an amendment to the Workers' Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971
(WWEF Ordinance). As a result of this amendment it may be construed that all Collective Investment
Schemes / mutual funds (CISs) whose income exceeds Rs 0.5 million in a tax year have been

brought within the scope of the WWF Ordinance. Thus rendering them liable to pay contribution to
WWEF at the rate of two percent of their accounting or taxable income, whichever is higher. In this
regard, a constitutional petition has been filed by certain CISs through their trustees in the

Honourable High Court of Sindh (the Court), challenging the applicability of WWF to the CISs, which
is pending for adjudication.

Subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2010, a clarification was issued by the Ministry of Labour and
Manpower (the Ministry) on July 8, 2010 which stated that mutual funds are not liable to contribute to
WWEF on the basis of their income. However on December 14, 2010 the Ministry filed its response
against the Constitutional petition requesting the Court to dismiss the petition. According to the legal
counsel who is handling the case, there is a contradiction between the aforementioned clarification
issued by the Ministry and the response filed by the Ministry in the Court.

Subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2011, the Honourable Lahore High Court (LHC) in a
constitutional petition relating to the amendments brought in the WWF Ordinance, 1971 through the
Finance Act, 2006, and the Finance Act 2008, has declared the said amendments as unlawful and
unconstitutional and struck them down. In March 2013 a larger bench of the Sindh High Court (SHC)
in various constitutional petitions declared that amendments brought in the WWF Ordinance, 1971
through the Finance Act, 2006, and the Finance Act 2008, do not suffer from any constitutional or
legal infirmity.

However constitutional petition filled by the CISs are still pending for adjudication. During the year,
the Fund has recognized WWF amounting to Rs.1.15 million representing charge pertaining to period
from November 25, 2010 to November 30, 2012 in order to effect merger of the Fund in to AMZ Plus
Income Fund. Subsequent to merger the Fund has discontinued accrual of WWF charge amounting

to Rs.1.41 million pertaining to period from December 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 in view of uncertainty
on applicability of WWF on mutual funds and impending decision of the Court. Had the Fund has
recognized WWF charge the net assets of the Fund and net income of the Fund would have been
lower by Rs.1.41 million.

NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 2013 2012
(Units)

Total outstanding at the beginning of the year 5,597,872 6,869,939

Sales during the year 5,575,349 1,145,971

Redemption during the year (4,230,493) (2,418,038)

Bonus units issued 1,982 -

Total units in issue at the end of the year 6,944,710 5,697,872

Face value of the unit is Rs. 100 each.
LIABILITIES WRITTEN BACK

This represent unclaimed liabilities appearing in the books of Fund pertaining to period 2010. The
liability was appearing in the books of AMZ Plus Income Fund (APIF) and was transferred to the
Fund on the effective date of merger. Based on legal advise, the management has reversed the
amount as they consider it as time barred.



AUDITORS' REMUNERATION 2013 2012
(Rupees in *000)

Audit fee 350 275
Half yearly review 110 80
Other certifications and services 70 60
Out of pocket expense 63 40

593 455

22,
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EARNINGS PER UNIT

Due to the specific nature of open ended collective investment schemes in respect of daily issuance
and redemptions of units, determination of weighted average number of units for calculation of
earnings per unit is not practical.

ACCUMULATED INCOME / (LOSSES) BROUGHT FORWARD / CARRIED
FORWARD

As per Schedule V to the NBFC Regulations 2008, undistributed income / (losses) brought forward /
carried forward needs to be bifurcated in to realized and unrealized gains / (losses). However, it has
not been bifurcated as management consider it impracticable to do so.

TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from Income Tax as per clause 99 of part | of the Second Schedule of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting
income for the year as reduced by capital gains whether realized or unrealized is distributed amongst
the unit holders. Furthermore, as per regulation 63 of the NBFC Regulations, 2008 and Notified
Entities Regulations, 2008, the Fund is required to distribute 90% of the net accounting income other
than unrealized capital gains to the unit holders. The Fund is also exempt from the provision of Section
113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001. The management distributes at least 90% of the income earned by the Fund to the
unit holders in the manner explained above. Consequently, no provision for taxation has been made in
these financial statements.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES / CONNECTED PERSONS

Related parties / connected persons include KASB Funds Limited being the Management Company,
its related entities, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited being the Trustee of the Fund,
other Funds managed by the Management Company and directors, key management personnel and

officers of the Management Company, and unit holders having more than 10% holding in the Fund.

Transactions with related parties / connected persons are in the normal course of business, at
contracted rates and terms determined in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with
the provisions of NBFC Regulations, 2008 and the Trust Deed respectively.

Details of transactions with related parties / connected persons and balances with them at year end
are as follows:



25.1 Transactions with related parties / connected persons 2013 2012
during the year: (Rupees in *000)

KASB Funds Limited

Remuneration expense 8,947 7,849
Conversion in the Fund: 542,951 units (2012: 287,699 units) 28,293 15,000
Conversion out of the Fund: 160,757 units (2012: Nil) 12,150 -
Redemption from the Fund: 164,686 units (2012: 287,699 units) 12,451 19,192
Sale of fixed income and other debt securities 1.5.7 22,000 -

KASB Bank Limited

Bank charges 19 14
Profit received on bank deposits 6,895 6,559
Dividend paid 1,008 -

KASB Securities Limited

Brokerage expense 25.3 5 12
Conversion in the Fund: 51,737 units (2012: Nil) 3,723 -
Redemption from the Fund: 51,737 units (2012: Nil) 3,710 -

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Remuneration 15 755 672

CDS charges 11 6

KASB Modaraba
Investment made in certificate of musharaka 80,000 -

KASB Islamic Income Opportunity Fund
Purchase of fixed income and other debt securities 7.5.15 363 -

Sigma Corporation Limited
Investment in the Fund: 1,497,398 units (2012: Nil) 100,000 -

Redemption from the Fund: 1,262,143 units (2012: Nil) 84,929 -

Mr. Abdul Rashid / Khadija

Investment in the Fund: 800,219 units (2012: Nil) 60,000 -
Conversion in the Fund: 1,419,007 units (2012: Nil) 104,984 -
Conversion out of the Fund: 800,219 units (2012: Nil) 60,575 -

Directors & officers of the management company
Conversion in the Fund: 28,900 units (2012: 4,570 units) 2,079 300

Redemption from the Fund: 18,379 Units (2012: Nil) 1,329 -
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Balances with related parties / connected persons at year end: 2013 2012
(Rupees in '000)

KASB Funds Limited
Payable to Management Company of the Fund 14 1,149

Units held: 217,508 units (2012: Nil) 17,336

KASB Bank Limited

Bank balance 4 291,161 36,338

Profit receivable on bank deposits 254 1,790

Units held: 3,361,101 units (2012: 3,361,101 units) 270,398 228,149

KASB Securities Limited
Brokerage payable 25.3 7

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Payable to Trustee of the Fund 15 76

Security deposit 13.2 200

Sigma Corporation Limited
Units held: 235,256 units (2012: Nil) 18,751

Mr. Abdul Rashid / Khadija
Units held: 1,419,007 units (2012: Nil) 114,158

Directors & officers of the management company
Units held: 15,112 units (2012: 4,570 units) 1,204

The amount disclosed represents the amount of brokerage paid to connected person and not the
purchase or sale values of securities transacted through them. The purchase or sale values have not
been treated as transactions with connected persons as ultimate counter parties are not connected
persons.

The rate of return on this deposit is 8% to 9% per annum (2012: 10% to 11% per annum).
RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors of Management Company has overall responsibility for the establishment
and oversight of the Fund's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for
developing and monitoring the Fund's risk management policies. The management of these risks is
carried out by investment committee under policies approved by the Board of Directors.

The Fund primarily invests in money market instrument and government securities with an objective
of optimizing the return to unit holders. The Fund has exposure to the following risks from financial
instruments:

- Market risk
- Credit risk and
- Liquidity risk



26.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of the financial instruments will
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices and foreign
exchange rate. The objective of market risk management is to manage market risk exposure within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

The Management Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by
following the internal risk management policies and investment guidelines and regulations laid down by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund, at present is not exposed to
currency risk as all transactions are carried out in Pak Rupees.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Fund holds fixed and floating rate debt
securities that expose the fund to cash flow and fair value interest rate risk due to fluctuations in
prevailing levels of market interest rates .

As at June 30, 2013, the investment in debt securities exposed to interest rate risk is detailed in Notes
7.3, 7.5 and 7.7 to these financial statements.

a) Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

In case of 100 basis points increase / decrease in KIBOR and MTS Lending rate on June 30,
2013, with all other variables held constant, the net assets of the Fund and net income for the
year would have been higher / lower by Rs. 0.251 million (2012: Rs. 1.433 million).

The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio and KIBOR / MTS lending rates is expected
to change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2013 is not
necessarily indicative of the effect on the Fund's net assets of future movements in interest
rates. The fluctuation is interest of 100 basis points is reasonably possible in current economic
environment.

b) Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

In case of 100 basis points increase / decrease in rates announced by Financial Markets
Association of Pakistan on June 30, 2013, with all other variables held constant, the net income
for the year and net assets would be lower / higher by Nil (2012: Rs. 0.023 million). The
fluctuation is interest of 100 basis points is reasonably possible in current economic environment.

The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio and rates announced by Financial Markets
Association of Pakistan and Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan is expected to change over
time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2013 is not necessarily
indicative of the impact on the Fund's net assets of future movements in interest rates.



Investments in placements and certificates of investment which are carried at amortised cost and not exposed the
Fund to fair value and cash flow interest rate risk.

Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of the financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors
specific to an individual investment, its issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market. As at June
30, 2013, the Fund has investment in quoted equity securities exposed to price risk.

In case of 5% increase / decrease in KSE 100 index on June 30, 2013, net income and net assets of the Fund
would increase / decrease by Rs. 0.709 million (2012: Nil) as a result of gains/losses on equity securities at fair
value through profit or loss.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or
commitment that it has entered into with the Fund, resulting in a financial loss to the Fund. It principally arises
from balances with banks, Lending under MTS, Income receivable, Investments, Certificate of Investment,
Placements, Term finance facility, Receivable against loan, Receivable against lease facility and Deposits and
other receivables. The credit exposures arises from investment in debt securities (before impairment) as defined
in Notes 7.3, 7.5 and 7.7 to these financial statements.

Credit risk management

It is the Fund’s policy to enter into financial contracts with reputable, diverse and creditworthy counterparties and
wherever possible or deemed necessary obtain collaterals in accordance with internal risk management policies
and investment guidelines designed for credit risk management. However, for testing an investment for impairment
the management does not consider the value of collaterals or other credit enhancements and follow the guidelines
provided by the SECP in terms of Circular 1 of 2009 and other clarification circulars issued by the SECP and
provisioning policy of the Fund duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company. The
Investment Committee closely monitors the creditworthiness of the Fund’s counterparties by reviewing their

credit ratings, financial statements and press releases on a regular basis.

Exposure to credit risk

The Fund's maximum credit exposure, without taking into account collateral and other credit enhancement, at the
balance sheet date is represented by the respective carrying amount of relevant financial asset i.e. balances with
banks, Lending under MTS, Income receivable, Investments, Certificate of Investment, Placements, Term
finance facility, Receivable against loan, Receivable against lease facility and Deposits and other receivables in
Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The credit exposure arises from investment in debt securities is detailed in
note 7.3, 7.5 and 7.7 to these financial statements.

Settlement risk

The Fund's activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions. Settlement risk is the risk of
loss due to the failure of counter party to honour its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets as
contractually agreed. Credit risk relating to unsettled transactions in securities is considered to be minimal as the
Fund uses brokers with high creditworthiness and the transactions are settled or paid for only upon delivery using
central clearing system.

Balances with bank
As at June 30, 2013, the Fund kept surplus liquidity with bank having credit rating of BBB. The rating to

respective banks are assigned by reputable credit rating agencies. The rating of the banks is monitored by the
Fund Manager and Investment Committee.



Investment in fixed income securities

Investment in treasury bills does not expose the Fund to credit risk as the counter party to the investment is the
Government of Pakistan and the management does not expect to incur any credit loss on such investments.

Investment in debt securities

Credit risk on debt investments is mitigated by investing primarily in investment grade rated investments and
purchase certificate of investments or make placements with financial institutions having sound credit rating.
Where the investment is considered doubtful / becomes non-performing as per criteria specified in Circular 1 of
2009, Circular 33 of 2012 and Circular 35 of 2012 issued by SECP, a provision is recognised as per the criteria
specified therein and also in accordance with provisioning policy of the Fund approved by Board of Directors of
the Management Company. The management does not take into account the collateral value while considering
investment for impairment testing. Hence the collateral held is assumed to have zero financial effect in mitigating
credit risk. The management regards the credit worthiness of the borrower more important than the value of
collateral and would be used as force majeure in extremely difficult situation where recovery is appeared to be
unlikely from customary measures like restructuring or negotiations.

The analysis below summarises the credit quality of the Fund's investment in Term Finance Certificates, Sukuk
Certificates, Placements and Certificates of Investment as at June 30:

Debt Securities by rating category

2013 2012
(Percentage)
AA+ - 0.54
AA 16.52 15.05
AA- - -
A 5.97 6.32
A- 33.56 32.89
Al+ - -
BBB - -
BBB- - 7.09
Non Investment Grade 8.03 2.23
Non rated 10.43 7.98
Non-performing 25.49 27.90

Deposits and other receivables

Deposits are placed with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) and Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) for the purpose of effecting transaction and settlement of listed securities.
It is expected that all securities deposited with NCCPL and CDC will be clearly identified as being assets of the
Fund, hence management believes that the Fund is not materially exposed to a credit risk with respect to such
parties.

Past due and impaired assets

None of the above financial assets were considered to be past due or impaired in 2013 and 2012 except for the
exposures and the provisions there against as provided in note 7.3, 7.5 and 7.7. The management has not
quantified the value of collaterals held against debt securities as management does not incorporate collaterals or
other credit enhancements into its credit risk management nor it considers the value of collateral while testing
investments for impairment and follows the circulars issued by the SECP for the purpose of making provision
against non performing exposures and provisioning policy of the Fund duly approved by the Board of Directors of
the Management Company.
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Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund’s total credit exposure. As at
June 30, 2013 there is no concentration of credit risk to an individual issuer / counterparty, apart from investment
in government securities to which the management believes it has no material credit exposure.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting it's obligations arising from it's financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets or that such obligations will have to be settled
in a manner disadvantageous to the Funds. Liquidity risk also arises because of the possibility that the Fund could
be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected. The Fund is exposed to cash redemptions of its units on a
regular basis. Units are redeemable at the holder’s option based on the Fund’s applicable redemption price
calculated in accordance with the Fund’s constitutive documents and guidelines laid down by the SECP. Hence,
unit holders' fund appearing in Statement of Assets and Liabilities represent the continuous obligation of the Fund
for redemption by its holders.

Management of liquidity risk

The Fund’s policy to managing liquidity is to have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities, including estimated
redemptions of units as and when due, without incurring undue losses or risking damage to the Fund’s reputation.
The Fund has the ability to borrow, with prior approval of trustee, for meeting redemption requests. The maximum
amount available to the Fund from borrowings is limited to the extent of 15% of net assets at the time of borrowing
with a condition of repayment within 90 days of such borrowings. No such borrowings have arisen during the
year.

The Board of Directors of the Management Company is empowered to impose a redemption gate should
redemption level exceed 10% of the net assets value of the Fund in any redemption period. The liquidity position
of the Fund is monitored by the Fund Manager and Risk and Compliance Department on daily basis. The aim of
the review is to ascertain the amount available for investment and also ensure sufficient liquidity is maintained to
meet redemption requests by analysing the historical redemption requests received by the Management Company.

The table below analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

June 30, 2013

Up to More More than Total
three than three one year
months months
and up to
one year

———————————————————————————— (Rupees in '000) ------==-====n==mnn-mmn

Payable to Management Company of the Fund 1,149 - - 1,149
Payable to Trustee of the Fund 76 - - 76
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,235 - - 1,235

2,460 - - 2,460




Payable to Management Company of the F
Payable to Trustee of the Fund
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Financial instruments by category

June 30, 2012

Up to More
three than three
months months
and up to
one year

More than Total
one year

(Rupees in '000) ---------=--==-==-=mn-mune

As at June 30, 2013, all the financial assets are carried on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities are categorised
either as 'loans and receivables' or financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss'. All the financial liabilities
carried on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities are categorised as other financial liabilities i.e. liabilities other

than "at fair value through profit or loss'.

Assets

Balances with banks - saving accounts
Lending under Margin Trading System
Income receivable

Investments

Receivable against loan

Deposits and other receivables

Liabilities

Payable to Management Company of the Fund
Payable to Trustee of the Fund

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

731 - - 731
59 - - 59
856 - - 856
1,646 - - 1,646
June 30, 2013
Loans and Assets at Available Total
receivables fair value for sale
through
profit or loss
---------------------- (Rupees in '000)-------------=------=-
291,177 - - 291,177
38,096 - - 38,096
34,260 - - 34,260
- - 181,213 181,213
7,942 - - 7,942
5,575 - - 5,575
377,050 - 181,213 558,263
June 30, 2013
Liabilities Other Total
at fair value financial
through liabilities
profit or loss
----------------- (Rupees in '000)-----------------
- 1,149 1,149
- 76 76
- 1,235 1,235

2,460 2,460




June 30, 2012

Loans and Assets at fair ~ Available for Total
receivables  value through sale
profit or loss

Assets
Balances with banks - saving accounts 36,338 - - 36,338
Income receivable 18,239 - - 18,239
Investments - 32,550 230,654 263,204
Certificate of Investment 13,448 - - 13,448
Term Finance Facility 53,837 - - 53,837
Deposits and other receivables 225 - - 225
122,087 32,550 230,654 385,291
June 30, 2012
Liabilities at Other Total
fair value financial
through profit liabilities
or loss
————————————————— (Rupees in '000)------------=----
Liabilities
Payable to Management Company of the Fund - 731 731
Payable to Trustee of the Fund - 59 59
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 856 856
- 1,646 1,646

Unit Holders' Funds risk management

The Fund's capital is represented by redeemable units. The Fund is required by the NBFC Regulations 2008, to
maintain minimum fund size to Rs. 100 million at all time during the life of the Fund. The units issued by the Fund
provides an investor with the right to require redemption for cash at a value proportionate to the unit holder's

share in the Fund's net assets at the redemption date.

The Fund's objective in managing the unit holder's funds are to ensure a stable base to maximise returns to all
investors and to manage liquidity risk arising from redemption. In accordance with the risk management policies,
the Fund endeavours to invest the subscriptions received in appropriate investments while maintaining sufficient
liquidity to meet redemption, such liquidity being augmented by disposal of investments.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Investments on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities are carried at fair value . The Management Company is of
the view that the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not significantly different from their

carrying values since assets and liabilities are essentially short term in nature.

The Fund measures fair value using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurement:

- Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument

- Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
1derived



- Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs.

2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(Rupees in '000)

'At fair value through profit Designated on initial recognition
- Fixed income and other debt securities - - -

'Available for sale'

- Fixed income and other debt securities - - 113,302
- Quoted equity securities 41,544 - _

2012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(Rupees in '000)

'At fair value through profit Designated on initial recognition
-Fixed income and other debt securities - 14,941 17,609.00

'Available for sale'
- Fixed income and other debt securities - - 230,654
- Quoted equity securities - - -

The Management Company is of the view that the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are

not significantly different from their carrying values since assets and liabilities are essentially short term in

nature.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors of the Management Company has approved a final dividend distribution of Rs. 10 per

unit for the year ended June 30, 2013 amounting to Rs. 69.447 million in total in their meeting held on July 4, 2013.
The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2013 do not include the effect of this appropriation which

will be accounted for in the financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2014.

SUPPLEMENTARY NON FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The information regarding pattern of unit holding, list of top ten brokers, meetings of the Board of Directors of the
management company and members of the Investment Committee are as follows:

Pattern of unit holding

Category No. of unit holders Investment amount Percentage of total
2013 2012 2013 2012 investment
(Numbers) (Rupees in "'000) 2013 2012
(%)

Individuals 33 24 207,172 30,261 37.21 7.96

Associated companies 6 2 307,161 228,149 55.18 60.04

Banks / Financial Institutions 1 1 31,401 121,519 5.64 31.98

Retirement Funds 1 - 10,930 - 1.96 -

Others 1 1 59 50 0.01 0.01

42 28 556,723 379,979 100.00 100.00
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List of top ten brokers / dealers by percentage of commission paid

Broker Name

JS Global Capital Limited

Invest & Finance Securities Limited
KASB Securities Limited

Alfalah Securities (Pvt.) Limited
Invest Capital Invest Bank Ltd.
Invest One Market Ltd.

Broker Name

Invest & Finance Securities Limited
KASB Securities Limited

JS Global Capital Limited

BMA Capital Management Limited
Global Securities Pakistan Limited
Alfalah Securities (Pvt.) Limited
Optimus Capital Markets Limited

Meeting of Board of Directors of Management Company

Name of the person Designation

Mr. Robert John Richard Owen Chairman

Mr. Muzaffar Ali Shah Bukhari Director

Mr. Qaisar P. Mufti Director

Mr. Amer Magbool Chief Executive and Director

Adnan Abdali Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Dates of the meetings of the Board of Directors

2013
(Percentage)

575
17.71
16.23

5.9

151

1.15

2012
(Percentage)
33.96
30.39
21.24
9.22
2.83
1.48
0.88

Meetings

Total Attended Leave
granted

o 00 00 00 00
0 00 0 N O™
'

The 60th, 61st, 62nd, 63rd, 64th, 65th, 66th and 67th Board meetings were held on July 5, 2012, August 29, 2012, September 14, 2012,

October 4, 2012, October 24, 2012, February 21, 2013, April 8, 2013 and April 29, 2013 respectively.

Details of Members of Investment Committee

Name Designation

Amer Magbool Chief Executive Officer
Hussain Jaffer Ali Khoja Head of Investments
Mohsin Raza Wasaya Fund Manager

Syed Adnan Abdali Chief Financial Officer
Adnan Akhtar Mannan Compliance Manager

Qualification Experience
(Years)
MBA 17
ACCA 10
B.Com 6
ACMA 9
ACCA 10

The Board of Directors in its 67th meeting held on April 29, 2013 deferred its decision of composition of Investment Committee.
However, Board of Directors in its 68th meeting held on July 4, 2013 approved composition of Investment Committee and its investment

decisions retrospectively.

Details of other funds managed by the Fund Manager

KASB Islamic Income Opportunity Fund and KASB Asset Allocation Fund under the management of KASB Funds Limited.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management Company on August 27 2013.

For KASB Funds Limited
(Management Company)






